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Dear Fellow Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Moiselle
International Holdings Limited (“Moiselle” or the “Company”), |
present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (which
are collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2020 (the “Year”).

MARKET OVERVIEW

The sector of retailing fashion apparel and accessories was
mired in extreme difficulties during the year ended 31 March
2020 (the “Year”). In Hong Kong, where Moiselle International
Holdings Limited (“Moiselle” or the “Company”) derived about
half its revenue, the operating environment worsened
significantly as a protracted social movement and a worldwide
novel coronavirus pneumonia pandemic combined to deal a
heavy blow to the sector. According to the Census and Statistics
Department of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region,
the value of retail sales of wearing apparel at the retail outlets in
the city dropped by 14.6% to about HK$45.16 billion in 2019.
That figure plunged by 55.4% year on year during the first
quarter of 2020, the period that was most affected by the
pandemic as travels were restricted and retail shops and
restaurants were compelled to shorten business hours or even

close up shops to help prevent the spread of the disease.

For the conventional fashion apparel retailers, the persistent,
industry-specific challenges included the increasingly popular
electronic commerce and fast fashion that had together changed
the consumption patterns and consumer preferences drastically.
To adapt to the situation, the conventional fashion apparel
retailers were reshaping the way they ran their business. For
instance, they tried to gear their products towards the younger
generation, enhanced the shopping experience at their shops,
built up their electronic commerce business, adopted more
information technology in their operations and made more use
of the social media, where information about the latest fashion
trends could be obtained and where key opinion leaders could

influence consumer decisions.

Annual Report 2020 4 £ 4 #
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RESULTS

The Group mainly engages in retailing women's fashion apparel
to high-end and upper-middle markets. The Company recorded a
loss of HK$146,466,000 for the Year mainly because of the
decrease in business amid the social movement and pandemic
and because of the impairment losses for the equipment and
facilities at its retail shops and those for the right-of-use assets in

the form of the leases on the shop spaces.

The Company continued to rationalize its retail network by
closing down stores although it also opened stores in places with
good prospect. Overall, the Company recorded a net decrease in
the total number of retail outlets during the Year. The remaining
stores could not make up for the absent revenue that had been
previously generated from the now closed stores. This also
contributed to the decrease in revenue. As a result, revenue
decreased by 23.7% to approximately HK$191,604,000 for the

Year.

The Group’s operations in Hong Kong accounted for about
51.0% of its revenue while those in Mainland China contributed
to about 18.7%. Operations in Macau, Taiwan and Singapore
made up 30.3% of the Group’s revenue. Gross profit margin was
76.7% for the Year, compared with the 81.8% for the previous
financial year ended 31 March 2019 (the “Previous Financial

Year”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the past several years, the already highly competitive market
for fashion apparel retailing has been undergoing fundamental
changes brought by the shrinkage of the existing customer base,
the emergence of a younger generation of consumers, fast
fashion and the growing popularity with electronic commerce
and social media. During the Year, the already very challenging
market was complicated by unexpected incidents, such as the
social movement in Hong Kong and the outbreak of the novel

coronavirus pneumonia pandemic.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ B B 4 4 4 [t 2 #]
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To cope with the very difficult operating environment, Moiselle
pressed ahead with its efforts to broaden its product range to
attract more young customers, leverage the social media to
promote its products, build up its electronic commerce business,
enhance the shopping experience at its retail stores, rationalize
its network of retail outlets, manage costs and implement
cost-effective sales and marketing initiatives. In addition, it also
succeeded in negotiating for rent reductions for some of its
shops as some landlords came to terms with the plunge in sales

at their tenants’ businesses.

To widen its customer base, the Group continued to enrich and
diversify its product range by creating more trendy wear and
increasing the proportion of mid-range products. For instance, it
created a series of jackets for working women and marketed
them under the theme “Force of Jacket”. It also diversified into
face masks that helped prevent the spread of the pandemic on
social occasions and at the workplace. The Group also
continued to increase the portion of the mid-range,
ready-to-wear fashion apparel in the total number of stock
keeping units (SKU) with the aim of attracting more young
customers. Meanwhile, it continued to serve its high-end,
long-time customers by offering deluxe dresses. It catered to the
high-end customers by keeping them updated about the latest
products online and then arranged for deliveries to their homes.
It also continued to provide the VIP club membership service by
organizing the members’ visits to its product showrooms for

purchasing goods in Hong Kong.

The Group had changed the mode of operations at its shops
from merely selling goods to enhancing the shopping
experience. For instance, the Group opened one more MOISELLE
shop that featured such elements as environmental awareness
and a quality lifestyle at K11 MUSEA, an art and retail complex,
at Victoria Dockside, 18 Salisbury Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, in
September 2019. This followed the Group’s similar move made
in March of 2018 when it opened THE EARTH STORE at the

Elements, a large shopping mall in West Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Annual Report 2020 4 £ 4 #
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That shop also incorporates such elements as lifestyle, art and
environmental awareness into its interior decoration and the
theme activities and marketing campaigns conducted there. In
Mainland China, the Group launched M-Suite “Mu Yu”
Experience Store (“B&F [5 B BEIE") at MIXC, a shopping
mall in Shenzhen in September 2019.

It also continued to rationalize its network of retail outlets by
closing some underperforming shops and opening some others in
places with a bright prospect. For instance, it opened three more
MOISELLE shops, one each in Shanghai, Dalian and Wuxi,
Mainland China during the Year.

To adapt to the growing trend towards electronic commerce, the
Group furthered its effort to market and sell its products through
third-party online platforms. It cooperated with OnThelList, an
online platform for flash sales, during the Year. Previously, the
Group had already formed alliances with three Mainland
China-based online shopping website operators, including
WeChat Mall on a popular social media WeChat, electronic
commerce website VIP.com, which specializes in online
discount sales and is operated by Vipshop (“BEE&” in Chinese),
and Tmall, another popular online shopping website in
Mainland China. It also continued to leverage the social media
to promote its brands and products through cooperation with

some celebrities and key opinion leaders.

OUTLOOK

The operating environment is expected to remain difficult as the
prospect is still clouded by the political uncertainty in Hong
Kong. It is also hard to predict how long it will take for the city’s
apparel retail market to recover in the aftermath of the
pandemic. Therefore, the Group will take a very prudent

approach to business development.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ B B 4 4 4 [t 2 #]
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In view of the lower return and high cost of running
conventional brick-and-mortar retail shops, the Group will invest
more in its electronic commerce business with the aim of raising
the efficiency of its operations. For example, it has invested in
its own online platform for the marketing and sales of its

products on its own website, which will be launched in 2020.

As other measures to raise efficiency, the Group has already
upgraded the information system for its retail outlets, retail
management department, production, inventory management,
warehouses and logistics. It will also install an information
system for its customer relationship management in the future.
As a preliminary move in this direction, the Group has already
planned to launch a mobile phone-enable application to allow
its sales staff to market its products to its existing and potential

customers.

The Group will also continue to enrich and diversify its product
range. For instance, it will introduce trendy sportswear made of

anti-bacterial material as its pre-fall collection in July 2020.

All these measures are aimed at enhancing the Group’s
competitiveness and at adapting it to the rapid changes in the
market. The Group will monitor closely the economic conditions
and fashion trends in the markets and may adjust the above

plans accordingly.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all our
shareholders and our fellow business partners for their support,
and our management and staff for their hard work and

dedication to the Group during the Year.

Chan Yum Kit

Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 July 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Targeting the markets for luxurious and mid-range apparel, the
Group operates such house brands as MOISELLE, m.d.m.s.,
GERMAIN and Rosamund MOISELLE, while engaging in
distributorship for international brand LANCASTER. Each of the
brands has its own distinctive consumer base, and is being
developed separately by the Group’s dedicated and talented
designer teams. The Group retails its products under the various
brands at stores in prime locations. As at 31 March 2020, the
Group had 44 stores and counters in Hong Kong, first- and
second-tier cities of Mainland China, Macau, Taiwan and
Singapore, down from 50 as at 31 March 2019 because it
rationalized its retail network in the very difficult business

environment.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS BY LOCATION

Operations in Hong Kong

Revenue from the Group’s operations in Hong Kong decreased
by 30.0% to approximately HK$97,788,000 for the Year because
social movement and the novel coronavirus pneumonia
pandemic took their toll on business. This exacerbated the
already difficult situation in which Moiselle, which is positioned
as a fashion brand for the niche markets for high-end and
upper-middle products, had been trying to cope with the
profound changes made by electronic commerce and fast

fashion to the consumption patterns and consumer preferences.

As part of its effort to reduce operating cost, the Group
continued to rationalize its network of retail outlets and
succeeded in getting rent reductions for some of its shop spaces

from landlords.

The Group also took efforts to cope with the more volatile
business environment of the apparel retail sector. To adapt to
the growing trend towards online shopping, the Group was
building up its electronic commerce business. For instance, it
furthered its effort to market and sell its products through
third-party online platforms by cooperating with OnThelList, an

online platform for flash sales, during the Year.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ B B 4 4 4 [t 2 #]
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To better meet the needs of the young people whose preferences
have also been shaped significantly by the social media, the
Group continued to leverage the social media to promote its
brands and products through cooperation with some celebrities
and key opinion leaders. It also enriched and diversified its
product range by creating more trendy wear and increasing the
proportion of mid-range products. For instance, it created a
series of jackets for working women and marketed them under
the theme “Force of Jacket”. The Group also continued to
increase the portion of the mid-range, ready-to-wear fashion
apparel in the total number of stock keeping units (SKU) with the

aim of attracting more young customers.

The Group had also enhanced the shopping experience at some
of its shops by incorporating such elements as lifestyle, art and
environmental awareness into their interior decoration and the

theme activities and marketing campaigns conducted there.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group operated 7 MOISELLE, 2
m.d.m.s., 1 LANCASTER and 1T M CONCEPT retail stores as well
as 4 outlets (As at 31 March 2019: 9 MOISELLE, 3 m.d.m.s., 2
LANCASTER and 1 M CONCEPT retail stores as well as 3

outlets).

Operations in Mainland China

Revenue from its operations in Mainland China edged up by
2.8% to approximately HK$35,784,000 for the Year. To
capitalize on the growing popularity of online shopping,
especially among the young people, the Group had already
formed alliances with three Mainland China-based online
shopping website operators. It continued to develop its business
of online sales and marketing which consisted of an online
platform in WeChat Mall on a popular social media WeChat and

online stores at Tmall and Vipshop.

Annual Report 2020 4 £ 4 #
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group also rationalized its network of retail outlets by
closing some underperforming shops and opening some others in
places with good prospect. For instance, it opened three more
MOISELLE shops, one each in Shanghai, Dalian and Wuxi,
Mainland China during the Year. It also launched M-Suite “Mu
Yu” Experience Store at MIXC, a shopping mall in Shenzhen in
September 2019.

To better manage the operating cost, the Group succeeded in
reaching agreements with some landlords so that rents were
charged as certain percentages of the revenue at some stores.
This made it easier for the Group to sustain the retail business at

the physical stores.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group operated 13 MOISELLE retail
stores in the country (As at 31 March 2019: 14 MOISELLE retail

stores).

Operations in Macau

For the Year, the Group operated five shops at the Venetian
Macao Resort Hotel and one shop at the Parisian Macao Hotel,
including 2 M CONCEPT, 2 MOISELLE, 1 m.d.m.s. and 1
LANCASTER retail stores in the city (As at 31 March 2019: 2
concept stores, M CONCEPT, 2 MOISELLE, 1 m.d.m.s. and 1
LANCASTER retail stores). The Group’s retail stores in Macau
were closed in February but mostly reopened in March of 2020
and travel by tourists to the city was also restricted to help
prevent the spread of the novel coronavirus pneumonia
pandemic. As a result, the combined revenue generated by the
six retail stores fell by 28.8% to approximately HK$34,437,000,

accounting for about 18.0% of the Group’s revenue.

Operations in Taiwan

Revenue at the Group’s operations in Taiwan decreased by
23.3% to approximately HK$14,723,000 for the Year. Revenue
generated there accounted for about 7.7% of the Group’s
revenue for the Year. The Group operated 4 MOISELLE and 1
m.d.m.s. retail stores as well as 2 outlets as at 31 March 2020.
(As at 31 March 2019: 5 MOISELLE, T m.d.m.s. and 1
LANCASTER retail stores as well as 1 outlet).

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ B B 4 4 4 [t 2 #]
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Operations in Singapore

Revenue at the Group’s business in Singapore edged down by
1.9% to approximately HK$8,872,000 during the Year. As at 31
March 2020, the Group operated 2 MOISELLE and 1
LANCASTER retail store (As at 31 March 2019: 2 MOISELLE and
2 LANCASTER retail stores).

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overview

The Group’s revenue decreased by approximately 23.7% to
approximately HK$191,604,000 (2019: HK$251,021,000) during
the year ended 31 March 2020 as compared with 2019. The
revenue earned from Hong Kong segment decreased by
approximately 30.0% to approximately HK$97,788,000 (2019:
HK$139,610,000). The worsening of business environment in
Hong Kong market caused significant decrease of revenue of the
segment under reduced traffic of customers at all points of sales.
The segment contributed to 51.0% (2019: 55.6%) of the Group's

total revenue.

The revenue of the segment outside Hong Kong decreased by
approximately 15.8% to approximately HK$93,816,000 (2019:
HK$111,411,000) during the year ended 31 March 2020. The
segment contribution increased 4.6 percentage points to 49.0%
(2019: 44.4%) as benefited from increase in revenue in the
market of the Mainland China.

During the year, the Group’s gross profit margin was
approximately 76.7%, as compared to 81.8% of the previous
year. Decrease in gross profit margin was mainly attributed to
the increase in discounted sales and promotion activities in the
last quarter of the financial year. Operating expenses for the year
ended 31 March 2020 totaled approximately HK$270,542,000,
compared to approximately HK$257,954,000 for 2019,
increased by approximately 4.9%. Although the management
had continued to conduct various measures in stringent cost
management to counteract high operating expenses, mainly staff
costs and rental expenses, the Group suffered an operating loss
of HK$119,134,000 (2019: HK$44,905,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The loss attributable to the equity shareholders for the year
ended 31 March 2020 was approximately HK$146,694,000
(2019: HK$19,717,000), deteriorated significantly mainly due to
the decrease in the operating margin, the increased impairment
of right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment based
on unfavorable forecast of future cash flows in respect of cash
generating units the Group owns which was in turn resulted
from the widespread and continuous adverse impact of novel
coronavirus pneumonia pandemic on short-term to long-term
economy, and the decrease in fair value of investment properties

under unfavourable market conditions.

Liquidity and financial resources

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group financed its
operations with internal generated cash flows and bank
borrowings. The Group adopts a prudent financial policy such
that it can meet the financial obligations when they fall due and
maintain a sufficient operating fund for the development of the
Group’s business. At the end of the year, the Group’s aggregate
fixed deposits and cash balances amounted to approximately
HK$32 million (2019: HK$31 million). Cash and bank deposits
were held mainly in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The
Group has foreign operations and certain of its net assets are
exposed to the risk of foreign currency exchange rate
fluctuations. The management regularly monitors the foreign
currency exchange risk of the Group and may consider hedging

activities when necessary.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group maintained secured bank
borrowings of HK$34 million (2019: HK$6 million) at operating
subsidiary level financing its working capital. Besides, the Group
also maintained aggregate composite banking facilities of
approximately HK$26 million (2019: HK$46 million) with
various banks, of which approximately HK$3 million (2019:

HK$5 million) were utilised.
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The Group ran into net current liabilities of HK$24,850,000 as
at 31 March 2020, with current assets being less than current
liabilities (2019: net current assets HK$75,509,000). As at 31
March 2020, the gearing ratio (aggregate of bank borrowings
and finance lease payables divided by shareholders’ equity) was
6.4% (2019: 0.9%).

Charge on assets

As at 31 March 2020, leasehold land and buildings with a
carrying value of approximately HK$52 million (31 March 2019:
HK$30 million) were pledged to secure bank borrowings granted

to the Group.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2020, the Group employed 348 (2019: 415)
employees mainly in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Salaries
of employees are maintained at competitive levels while bonuses
are granted on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits
include mandatory provident fund, statutory and medical

insurance cover and training programmes.

COMMITMENT TO STAKEHOLDERS’ INTERESTS, SOCIETY’S
WELL-BEING AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

The Group is committed to ensuring the rights and interests of its
stakeholders (including its shareholders, employees and
customers) and the well-being of society at large while
complying with all the laws and regulations of the places where
it has operations, including Hong Kong, Mainland China,

Taiwan, Macau and Singapore.

In addition to its business objective of maximizing returns to
shareholders, the Group also tries its best to fulfil its corporate
social responsibility. For instance, the Group ensures protection
of both environment and consumers against hazardous
substances throughout the process of conducting its business,
from raw material procurement, production to retail. The Group
also has taken measures to ensure that its factory in Shajing,
Shenzhen, complies with the local environmental regulations on
industrial emissions and effluents. The factory is only
responsible for sewing and is not engaged in any dyeing of

fabrics.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group believes in consumers’ entitlement to quality and
safe products. To attain this goal, the Group maintains
well-established relationships with trustworthy raw material
suppliers and processing factories, and delivers a sample of each
model of its products to Shenzhen Academy of Metrology and
Quality Inspection for inspection. Besides, the Group also
requires all business partners, raw material suppliers and
production vendors to fulfill all relevant legal and regulatory

requirements on product safety.

The Group now has over 30 suppliers and has business
relationship of more than a decade on average with each of
them. Such well-established business relationships with the
suppliers are attributable to the Group’s success in building their

trust in it with integrity and by honouring the contracts.

The Group has established a customer loyalty program in order
to enhance customer satisfaction as well as to encourage
repeated purchase. Under the membership program, the VIP
customers can enjoy special discounts and regular activities. It
also manages and maintains good customer relations through
customer service hotlines, after-sales supports as well as bespoke

service and communication with members via mails and emails.

Another group of stakeholders who are also key to the Group’s
success are its employees. The Group offers its staff reasonable
remuneration and benefits and protect their rights according to
the labour laws of the places where it has operations. For
instance, it complies with the relevant laws and regulations on
the employees’ provident fund pension scheme, employment
insurance and safety at work. It also provides training for them
that benefit the development of both their careers and the

Group's business.
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The Group aims to accumulate resources for business and use
them effectively to ensure sustainable development. For
instance, it has been enhancing the brand equity of its house
brands and that of the European brands for which it is a
distributor by actively exploring new markets. It has also
allocated resources for the design, research and development of
products and the training of staff. The move was aimed at
manufacturing products of high quality and refreshing designs
with new or improved materials. It also serves to raise the
efficiency of the retail operations. The Group also tries its best to
protect its intellectual property rights and patents and respects

other parties’ intellectual property rights.

All these initiatives and measures can contribute to the

sustainability of the Group’s business.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Yum Kit, aged 61, is the Chairman of the Company.
Mr. Chan is one of the co-founders of the Group and has overall
responsibility for the Group’s overall strategic planning,
formulation of corporate policies and marketing. He has over 43
years of experience in business administration in various
industries including garment manufacturing and trading.
Mr. Chan was awarded the Young Industrialist Awards of
Hongkong by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in
November 2001 and was awarded with the DHL/SCMP Hong
Kong Business Award in the Owner-Operator Award category in
December 2001. He was awarded 2006 World Outstanding
Chinese Award by the World Chinese Business Investment
Foundation. Mr. Chan holds an honorary doctorate degree in
management from Armstrong University in the United States. He
was also awarded 2004 Associateship by The Professional
Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries in January 2004. He
is a senior fellow of Social Enterprise Research Academy and a
fellow member of Asian Knowledge Management Association.
He is currently a member of CreateSmart Initiative Vetting
Committee and of the Design-Business Collaboration Scheme
Assessment Panel under Create Hong Kong, and of the higher
education advisory committee of the faculty of design and
environment of Technological and Higher Education Institute of
Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is a member of Hong Kong Young
Industrialists Council and serves on the expert group on fashion
industry under the working group on manufacturing industries,
innovative technology, and cultural and creative industries of
the Economic Development Commission. He is the chairman of
the organising committee and a final assessor of the sixth Youth
DreamMakers award and is the vice-chairman of HK Guangxi
Chamber of Commerce. He is the husband of Ms. Tsui How Kiu,
Shirley and is the father of Mr. Chan Sze Chun and Mr. Chan
Pak Hei.
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Ms. TSUI How Kiu, Shirley, aged 61, is an executive director.
She is one of the co-founders of the Group and is the Group’s
vice-chairman. She is responsible for the Group’s merchandising
management and retail operations management. She has over 43
years of experience in business administration in various
industries including garment manufacturing and trading. She was
awarded Golden Bauhinia Women Entrepreneur Excellence
Award in November 2016. She is a member of Zonta Club of
New Territories, an honorary president and council member of
Hong Kong Federation of Women, a co-chairman of HK Tianjin
Women’s Federation, a member of HKFW Women Entrepreneurs
Committee and of Hong Kong Women Professionals &
Entrepreneurs Association, a delegate of All-China Women’s
Federation, Zhuhai, and a honorary president of All-China
Women’s Federation Hong Kong Delegates Association Limited,
of the island regional association of the Hong Kong Girl Guides
Association, and of the council of Youth DreamMakers
Association. Ms. Tsui is the wife of Mr. Chan, Chairman of the
Company, and is the mother of Mr. Chan Sze Chun and
Mr. Chan Pak Hei.

Mr. CHAN Sze Chun, aged 42, is an executive director. He
joined the Group in December 2000. He is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s overseas market operations. Mr. Chan
Sze Chun holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce from Monash
University of Australia. He is the son of Mr. Chan, Chairman of
the Company, and Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley, and is the brother
of Mr. Chan Pak Hei.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. YU Yuk Ying, Vivian, aged 60,

non-executive director appointed in January 2002. Ms. Yu is a

is an independent
solicitor and a partner with Yung, Yu, Yuen & Co., a firm of
solicitors, and has been practising in Hong Kong for over 32
years with a focus in the conveyancing and commercial
practice. She obtained a bachelor’s degree in science from
University of Wisconsin-Madison as her first degree and then
passed the Solicitors’ Final Examination and qualified as a
solicitor. Ms. Yu has over 31 years’ experience in property
investment and management. She was appointed as

China-appointed Attesting Officer in 2003 and was also
appointed as notary public in December 2009.

Mr. CHU Chun Kit, Sidney, aged 59,
non-executive director appointed in October 2003. Mr. Chu is
currently the CEO of Archiledture Limited. He has 29 years’

is an independent

experience in international marketing and senior management
role in both the semiconductor and solid-state lighting
industries. Mr. Chu graduated from the University of Essex with
a bachelor’s degree in science (electronic engineering) and
received a master’s degree in science from the University of

Westminster, London.

Ms. WONG Shuk Ying, Helen (alias name: LEE Shuk Ying,
Helen), aged 66, is an independent non-executive director
appointed in September 2004. Ms. Wong is currently the
director of Kimeray Investment Limited. She has over 30 years’
experience in management consulting and systems
implementation in both the public and private sectors.
Ms. Wong is a member of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada and holds a bachelor’s degree in
commerce from Queen’s University in Canada. She is the
vice-chairman of the board of directors, a member of the finance
committee, and the chairman of the information technology
committee of Heep Hong Society, and is a director, the
chairman of the information technology development committee
and the ERP project steering committee, and a member of the

services committee of Hong Kong YWCA.
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Senior Management

Mr. CHAN Pak Hei, aged 32, is the deputy chief executive
officer of the Group. He joined the Group in May 2009. He is
responsible for overseeing the Group’s overall operations and
design and development functions. In addition, he is also
responsible for the Group’s brand building, marketing and
interior design affairs. Mr. Chan Pak Hei holds a bachelor of arts
degree in fashion management (fashion retail) from University of
the Arts London of the United Kingdom. He is a member of
Hong Kong CPPCC Youth Association and a co-vice-chairperson
of the academy ball organising committee of the Society of the
Academy for Performing Arts. He is the son of Mr. Chan,
Chairman of the Company, and Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley, and
is the brother of Mr. Chan Sze Chun.

Ms. PANG Lin, aged 50, is the chief operating officer of the
Group and the company secretary of the Company. Prior to
joining the Group in June 2001, Ms. Pang served as a finance
manager and company secretary of a company listed on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. She
has over 29 years of experience in the audit, accounting and
finance, administration and corporate secretarial fields. She
holds a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy and a master’s
degree in business administration (fashion business) from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, a master’s degree in corporate
governance from the Open University of Hong Kong and a
bachelor’s degree in Chinese law from Peking University. She is
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
of the United Kingdom, the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries (“HKICS”) and the Chartered Governance Institute of
the United Kingdom, a member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants of the United Kingdom and a holder

of the practitioner’s endorsement of HKICS.
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Corporate Governance Report

Moiselle International Holdings Limited (the “company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “group”) is committed to meeting statutory and
regulatory requirements and adherence to the principles of
corporate governance emphasizing transparency, independence,

accountability, responsibility and fairness.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Save for the deviation of the Code Provisions A.2.1T and A.6.7 as
below, the company has complied with the code provisions
listed in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 March 2020.

Code Provisions A.2.1

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual. Currently,
Mr. Chan Yum Kit is the chairman of the board of directors (the
“Board”) and also assumes the role of the chief executive officer.
The Board considers that the current management structure
ensures consistent leadership and optimal efficiency for the
operation of the company. The company will however keep this

matter under review.

Code Provisions A.6.7

Code Provisions A.6.7 of the CG Code provides that the
independent non-executive directors should attend general
meetings of the company. Due to prior engagements external to
the company, Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen was unable to attend
the annual general meeting of the company held on 4 September
2019.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the company’s
code of conduct for dealings in securities of the company by the
directors. Based on specific enquiry of the company’s directors,
the directors have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2020.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ B B 4 4 4 [t 2 #]
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises six directors, three of which are executive
directors, namely Mr. Chan Yum Kit (Chairman), Ms. Tsui How
Kiu, Shirley, and Mr. Chan Sze Chun, and three are independent
non-executive directors, namely Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian,
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney and Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, five board meetings
were held. One of the meetings was held in accordance with
paragraph A.2.7 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules which states
that the Chairman should hold meeting with the non-executive
directors without the executive directors of the company
present. In addition, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, one of the
meetings was held in the form of video conference. The

attendance of each director is set out as follows:

R A 8%
Director Attendance record
Mr. Chan Yum Kit 5/5
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley 4/4
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 4/4
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 5/5
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 5/5
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 5/5

During the year ended 31 March 2020, one general meeting, the
annual general meeting, was held. The attendance of each

director is set out as follows:

H AT 8%
Director Attendance record
Mr. Chan Yum Kit 1/1
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley 1/1
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 1/1
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 1/1
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 11
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 0/1

Annual Report 2020 4 £ 4 #




ESEREHEAKE o EBRRE  WIEIKEEE

BrhfE & ERK -

EEERECRRCOINESRSREEAER

TR -

BExEdl

SEEFDAADDRAREEETEN 20 -
SEBREZEIRSEZFERIMT

E=x

Director

PRERAR 4
Mr. Chan Yum Kit

®IGEz L
Ms. Tsui How Kiu,
Shirley

PREGEE
Mr. Chan Sze Chun

Annual Report 2020 4 ¥4 #

(e SRR e

Corporate Governance Report

The board of directors is responsible for the formulation of

business strategies for the group and the operational decision

making is delegated to the management team.

The relationship among members of the Board is separately

disclosed in the directors and senior management profiles.

DIRECTORS” TRAINING

director are set out as follows:

FriEssE iRk B

Training received and date

“E-EF=ZA=-1+WMAH
REAMIER SN D ZHER?
How Companies Grow

in a Turbulent Market?
24 March 2020

—E-EF=A=+WAH
ARMAED SN TS RER?
How Companies Grow

in a Turbulent Market?
24 March 2020

—E-EFZAKH

Islamic Banking & Finance
- Part 1

6 February 2020

BAIlRHE

Training provider

BEESES
The Hong Kong
Institute of

Directors

EEESEEE
The Hong Kong
Institute of

Directors

EABFRREES
Hong Kong
Securities and

Investment Institute

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ B B 4 4 4 [t 2 #]

The directors have provided records of the training they received

to the company. The details of training records provided of each

Fir 75 B 1

Time spent

3/NBF

3 hours

3/NBF

3 hours

2/ By

2 hours
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= FriE=sE IR B BAIlRHEE PR 3 B
Director Training received and date Training provider Time spent
RERBERE —Z-THE=-A-1MWmA BERESEE RENG
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, DB MAEE SN TG ERE? The Hong Kong 3 hours

Sidney How Companies Grow Institute of

in a Turbulent Market? Directors
24 March 2020

BERRZE —E-NFARRAZH 2SR EBA 2/ B
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, The KPMG INED Forum KPMG 2 hours

Helen 3 June 2019

S FEE LT ERENEE-E-2EF=A=1+—H
tFEEBITEBRMEMAERFIMFETRERRE
2 IE IR0 8% o

FHUTEEZES
BUFATESZEPRREME  AARBERQF
ZEBERMARESEE -

BYFHTESZHE LM

ARABCWBMEBIFATESRELHRASE
SMRBHEBE R _EF-A=FT-HLEFEZ
BUBRRE IRKZBIUFPTESYEBIA
j: o

Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian had provided training record on her
fulfillment of the mandatory continuing professional
development requirements of The Law Society of Hong Kong
during the year ended 31 March 2020.

TERM OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
term of two years and are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the articles of association of the company.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors a confirmation of independence for the
year ended 31 March 2020 pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and considers all the independent non-executive directors

to be independent.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The company has a nomination committee which was
established in compliance with the CG Code. The members of
the nomination committee comprise two independent
non-executive directors of the company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying,
Vivian (Chairperson) and Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen, and one

executive director, Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley.

The main role and function of the nomination committee consist
of formulation and implementation of the nomination policy,
review of the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives) of
the Board, and making recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors in particular

the chairman and the chief executive.

BOARD DIVERSITY
The company has adopted a board diversity policy which

consists of the following main aspects:

a. Board composition to be reviewed in terms of the size of
the Board, the number of non-executive directors and

executive directors in relation to the overall Board,

b. Board effectiveness which requires members to have diverse
skills, knowledge and experiences that combine to provide

different perspectives and effective board dynamics, and

c.  Nominations and appointments to be carried out in view of
maintaining an appropriate mix of required skills,

experience, expertise and diversity on the Board.

The nomination committee is responsible to review the policy
on board diversity and any measurable objectives for its
implementation and to review the progress on achieving the

objectives.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ B B 4 4 4 [t 2 #]
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The company has a remuneration committee which was
established in compliance with the CG Code. The members of
the remuneration committee comprise two independent
non-executive directors of the company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying,
Vivian (Chairperson) and Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney, and one

executive director, Mr. Chan Sze Chun.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, two remuneration
committee meetings were held. The attendance of each

committee member is set out as follows:

o FE R 8%
Director Attendance record
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 272
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 2/2
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 2/2

The main role and function of the remuneration committee
consist of determining the remuneration packages and the terms
of employment of the directors and senior management. During
the year, the remuneration committee has approved the terms of

non-executive director’s appointment.

The emoluments of the executive directors are determined with
reference to the duties, responsibilities and experience of the
directors and prevailing market conditions. Besides the basic
salaries and benefits-in-kind as stipulated in the service
agreements, prior approval of the remuneration committee is
also required for performance related benefits of the executive

directors.
The emoluments of the non-executive directors are determined

based on the estimated time spent by them on the company’s

matters.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments of the members of the senior management by
band for the year ended 31 March 2020 are set out below:

AE
HK$ Number of person
1,000,001 - 1,500,000 1
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 1

Further particulars regarding directors’ remuneration and
individuals with highest emoluments as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes

10 and 11 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

AUDITORS” REMUNERATION
During the year, the remuneration paid or payable to the group’s

independent auditor is analysed as follows:

BT
HKS
Eit R Audit services 1,300,000
FETIRHE Non-audit services 70,000
1,370,000

EREEY AUDIT COMMITTEE

AAREBLEMRAUEI2IRBLEREZRES 8
EERRERAEEMBRBEEARARER
RABEZHE BREESSHARA=UBIFE
HITESAR  2HARTELL (EF) ~ REH
FEREARZL WO ESSER -
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The company has an audit committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purposes
of reviewing and providing supervision over the group’s
financial reporting process and risk management and internal
control systems. The audit committee comprises three
independent non-executive directors of the company, Ms. Yu
Yuk Ying, Vivian (Chairperson), Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney and
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen, and reports to the Board.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ B B 4 4 4 [t 2 #]
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During the year ended 31 March 2020, three audit committee
meetings were held. The attendance of each committee member

is set out as follows:

HFERC 8%
Director Attendance record
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 3/3
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 3/3
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 3/3

During the year, the audit committee has reviewed with the
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the group, the interim and annual financial statements of the
group, met and discussed with the independent auditors, and
raised queries and obtained explanations from the management
on issues related to financial and operational control procedures

of the group.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges their responsibilities on the
maintenance of risk management and internal control systems
which are essential for effective and efficient operations of the
group and are fundamental in the thorough and regular
evaluation of the nature and extent of the risks to which the
group is exposed. These systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. Internal control is defined
as a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding

the achievement of objectives in relation to the following:

e Effectiveness and efficiency of operations;

e Reliability of financial reporting; and

e Compliance with applicable laws and regulations

Annual Report 2020 4 £ 4 #
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For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board, with the
assistance of the management, had conducted an annual review
on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the group, focusing on three major business cycles of
the group, under COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission) framework. The Board had been
satisfied with the effectiveness and adequacy of these systems on
monitoring and evaluating the risks. Based on the results, the
directors were dedicated to implement various initiatives to
further enhance the existing risk management and internal
control systems alongside with the ongoing business

development of the group.

During the year, the group has maintained an internal audit
function with internal resources and engaged external
consultants to assist the management in order to identify,

evaluate and manage significant risks of the group.

The group complies with the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information published by the Securities and Futures Commission
in view of fulfilling its obligations to disclose inside information

under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARING ACCOUNTS
The company’s directors acknowledge that they are responsible
for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements

which give a true and fair view.

STATEMENT BY THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
The statement of the independent auditor of the group regarding
their responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is

set out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 42 to 53.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ B B 4 4 4 [t 2 #]
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board adopts a dividend policy which in considering
declaration of dividends, the company shall maintain adequate
cash reserves in order to meet its working capital requirements
and future growth, and shall preserve its shareholders’ value by
allowing shareholders to participate in the company’s profits as

well.

The Board shall declare and distribute dividends to the
shareholders of the company in compliance with the articles of
association of the company under all applicable regulatory

framework.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

According to article 58 of the company’s articles of association,
any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist himself may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist as a result of the failure of the Board shall be

reimbursed to the requisitionist by the company.

If a member of the public or a shareholder wishes to put forward
enquiries to the Board and/or put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings, he/she must deposit a written notice (the
“Notice”) to the principal place of business of the company in
Hong Kong at Units 1-5, 11th Floor, Kodak House 2, 39 Healthy
Street East, North Point, Hong Kong, or the branch share
registrar of the company, Hong Kong Registrars Limited, at 17M
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong

Kong for the attention of the company secretary of the company.

Annual Report 2020 4 £ 4 #




MBRABRRAELREEZBUHEZER  BAEZR
RMER LA FTRETRIZRRAEEEER—H
e WEFTEREERRASAMALAER -
i BEAMERRRASH D58 WE "ﬂﬁ“’*
ZRELEERTRRASUATRRI4BNWERELN
e

BHESHLARMBFET D ERE  LNER
FRBEERFTERERARE  ARRAZAAWE
BERRQBAZEEZEERESE  UTEHR
BRIABTFEITZRRAENERF -

Annual Report 2020 4 ¥4 #

(e SRR e

Corporate Governance Report

In order for a proposal to be considered in general meetings, the
period for lodgement of the Notice will commence no earlier
than the day after the despatch of the notice by the company of
the general meeting to be convened and end no later than seven
days prior to the date of such general meeting. If the Notice is
received less than 15 days prior to the general meeting, the
company will need to consider the adjournment of the general
meeting in order to give shareholders 14 days’ notice of the

proposal.

The Notice will be verified with the company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the company secretary of the company will ask the
relevant committee of the company and the Board to consider to
include the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting to

be convened.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ B B 4 4 4 [t 2 #]
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The directors of Moiselle International Holdings Limited (the
“company”) presented its annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the company and its

subsidiaries (the “group”) for the year ended 31 March 2020.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The company is a company incorporated and domiciled in the
Cayman lIslands and has its registered office and principal place
of business at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and Units 1-5, 11/F,
Kodak House 2, 39 Healthy Street East, North Point, Hong Kong

respectively.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the group are the design, manufacture,
retail and wholesale of fashion apparel and accessories. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are

set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

The analysis of geographical location of the operations of the
group during the financial year is set out in note 5 to the

consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the businesses of the group during the year, a
discussion on the group’s future business development and an
analysis of the group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators are provided in the
Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 8 and the Management

Discussion and Analysis on pages 9 to 16 of this annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

For principal risks and uncertainties, the directors are aware that
the group is exposed to risks and uncertainties, including those
specific to the group and those having generic impacts. The
management closely monitors the business environment in
which the group operates in order to have opportunities and
threats the group faces identified, reported, monitored and
managed on a continuous basis. Related discussion on certain
risks and uncertainties is provided in the Chairman’s Statement
on pages 4 to 8 and the Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 9 to 16 of this annual report and notes 30 and 31 to

the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS
During the year ended 31 March 2020, the percentage of the
five largest customers combined were less than 30% of the

group’s total revenue.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS
The information in respect of the group’s purchases attributable

to the major suppliers respectively during the financial year is as

follows:
FEERBESTHEIL
Percentage of the group’s
purchases total
The largest supplier 40%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate 59%

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or
any shareholder of the company (which to the best knowledge of
the directors owns more than 5% of the company’s share

capital) had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ B B 4 4 4 [t 2 #]
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
group for each of the last five financial years is set out on pages
171 and 172.

DIVIDEND

The board did not declare the payment of an interim dividend
for the six months ended 30 September 2019 (2018: Nil). The
directors do not declare the payment of a final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Charitable donations made by the group during the year
amounted to HK$20,000 (2019: HK$197,000).

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the company’s share capital are set out in note 25 to
the consolidated financial statements. There were no movements

during the year.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000.
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RETIREMENT SCHEME (continued)

As stipulated by the regulations of the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”), the group participates in defined contribution
retirement plans organised by the relevant authorities for its
Mainland China employees. The group is required to make
contributions to the retirement plans which are calculated based
on certain prescribed rates on the salaries, bonuses and certain
allowances of its Mainland China employees. The group has no
other material obligation for the payment of pension benefits
associated with such plans beyond the annual contributions

described above.

Employees of the subsidiary carrying on business in Taiwan
chose to participate in a defined contribution scheme governed
by the Labour Pension Act of Taiwan. This subsidiary contributes
at 6% of the total salaries of participating employees who have
chosen to participate in the defined contribution scheme,
deposited into individual pension accounts at the Bureau of

Labour Insurance of Taiwan.

Employees of the subsidiary in Singapore participate in the
Central Provident Fund scheme (the “CPF”) organised by the
government of Singapore. This subsidiary and its employees are
required to contribute a certain percentage of the employees’
payroll to the CPF. The contributions are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
CPF. The subsidiary has no further obligations for the actual
pension payments or post-retirement benefits beyond its

contributions.

Contributions to the defined contribution scheme are charged to

profit or loss when incurred.
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DIRECTORS
The directors during the financial year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Chan Yum Kit

Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley
Mr. Chan Sze Chun

Independent non-executive directors
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian

Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney

Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen

Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley and Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney will
retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance
with article 87 of the company’s articles of association and,

being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
term of two years and are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the articles of association of the company.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal

statutory obligations.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the
directors and the chief executive of the company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the
register kept by the company under section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)

were as follows:

R ZERER EafaEsk
Beneficial Approximate EEME
Esps interest percentage Nature of
Name of director in shares of interests interest
PRERAREHE 193,616,000 67.24% NGy 3
Mr. Chan Yum Kit Corporate/Family
2,100,000 0.73% £
Family
2,100,000 0.73% 8 A
Personal
(MEE(1)R(2)
(Notes (1) and (2))
®IGEL L 193,616,000 67.24% IV
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley Corporate/Family
2,100,000 0.73% E¥i
Family
2,100,000 0.73% 8 A
Personal
(K1) % (2))
(Notes (1) and (2))
RERTE 900,000 0.31% BA
Mr. Chan Sze Chun Personal
ERRZL 28,000 0.01% PN
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen Personal
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EERTETBRAEREBS 2#R (#) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

BraE - Notes:

(1) 190,000,000 #% % B 19 J3 BSuper Result
Consultants Limited ([ Super Result]) 8 o
Super ResultZ RANTI BRI L E ([BREED
k#mEzt ((Hhat)) 2RBERER46.7%K
46.7% ° FREE RIFKLZ T H I F KR B M Super
ResultfT#58 2190,000,0008 BR 13 # #EH 0 =)

3¢
m °

3,616,0000% % % B 12 J3 EENew First Investments
Limited ([ New First]) &8 ° New FirstZ lRA T3
HRAEERBLZETDBIEREE0% REER
BRLELZTEAKZEHEARNew FirstFiFE 2
3,616,000 R H#EH A B -

2 BHRREERBZEIBRE RRLTPEHE
EREEZROP REEBRRAEERGES
Rz IR e

o —UESRETHEBARUEEREARS
BEAABAEESERN -ETESTESHESR
BRERIELR®D - ZFROER LI THAE R
REREARRASEERHFEAEIREINS A
R E DR 2D IKRSEEZEF -

BREtEN RZBEZEF=A=+—H0 &2FH
ANEERFETHASRESEEE2HEALH
ERAQAREEMEELIE (EERBHFRPE
RBIZEXVER) 2 R0 - HEARDRNES+ - HEX
AAREFSFRPEROIEI 2R 2BEFEZE
MR HARBEETFAMNEEAQNTARER
FieEHmSB LR -
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(1) 190,000,000 of these shares are held by Super Result Consultants
Limited (“Super Result”). The share capital of Super Result is
beneficially owned by Mr. Chan Yum Kit (“Mr. Chan”) and
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley (“Ms. Tsui”) as to 46.7% and 46.7%
respectively. Each of Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui will therefore be
deemed interested in the 190,000,000 shares held by Super Result
as corporate interest.

3,616,000 of these shares are held by New First Investments
Limited (“New First”). The share capital of New First is beneficially
owned by Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui as to 50% and 50% respectively.
Each of Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui will therefore be deemed interested
in the 3,616,000 shares held by New First as corporate interest.

(2)  Since Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui are married to each other, Mr. Chan
will be deemed interested in the shares which Ms. Tsui is deemed
interested in as family interest, and vice versa.

In addition to the above, one director has non-beneficial
personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for the
benefit of the group. Certain director also has beneficial interest
in non-voting deferred shares practically carrying no rights to
dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any
general meeting or to participate in any distribution or winding

up in a subsidiary.

Apart from the foregoing, as at 31 March 2020, none of the
directors or the chief executive of the company or their
respective associates had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the company or any
of its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO, as recorded in the register kept by the company under
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year ended 31
March 2020 was the company, or any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors or the chief executive of the company or
any of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or

debentures of the company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 March 2020, the interests or short positions of the
following shareholder, other than the directors and the chief
executive of the company, in the shares or underlying shares of
the company which have been disclosed to the company
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO have been recorded in the
register kept by the company under section 336 of the SFO:

EEABELEE

ERTROZBNEI L

HREROGEH Approximate percentage
Aggregate long of aggregate interests to

position in shares total issued shares

Super Result

Btat : Super Result ZBRATIHBREERBZLETHHE
BEFA46.7%R%46.7% °

BRERER EXESREIBTHRAERES 2E
Hm—EEARRAESERETETHRAE 2 EHI
BERADARBEIFZRPERAEIBHZBRER
BExETMpRE RZE-FEF=/=1+—-8"

W E AN+ AR D TR RATBEIR 3 o A R
HAKA o
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190,000,000 65.99% (#17E) (Note)

Note: The share capital of Super Result is beneficially owned by
Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui as to 46.7% and 46.7% respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, and other than the directors and the
chief executive of the company whose interests are set out in the
section “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests in securities”
above, no person was recorded in the register kept by the
company under section 336 of the SFO as having an interest or a
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the company
as at 31 March 2020.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ B B 4 4 4 [t 2 #]
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party, in which a director of the
company had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year

or at any time during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain material related party transactions as set out in note
32(a) to the consolidated financial statements fall under the
definition of continuing connected transactions in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The transactions are exempt from the
reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.33 of

the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the company’s
articles of association or the law in the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the company to offer new shares on a pro rata

basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the company’s
listed securities by the company or any of its subsidiaries during

the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the company has maintained the
prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules, based
on the information that is publicly available to the company and

within the knowledge of the directors of the company.
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INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the
directors of the company is currently in force and was in force

throughout the year.

AUDITORS

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution of the
re-appointment of Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors
of the company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

By order of the board

Chan Yum Kit

Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 July 2020
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Moiselle International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 54 to 168, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment
We identified the impairment of right-of-use assets and | Our procedures in relation to the impairment of
property, plant and equipment as a key audit matter due | right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment
to inherent uncertainty pertaining to the assumptions | included:
required in determining the future discounted cash flow
forecasts of each of the cash-generating unit (“CGU”) e Evaluating management’s identification of CGUs, the
being the individual retail stores and involvement of allocation of assets to each CGU identified and the
significant degree of management judgement and impairment assessment methodology adopted by
estimation in determining the amount of provision. management;
Management judgement is required to identify those | ¢  Comparing the most significant inputs used in the
CGUs requiring provision for impairment. preparation of the discounted cash flow forecasts,
including future revenue and related future expenses,
Impairment losses on right-of-use assets of with the historical performance of these retail stores
HK$43,623,000 and property, plant and equipment of and the budgets and forecasts approved by directors
HK$7,525,000 respectively were recognised during the of the Company, taking into account recent
year ended 31 March 2020. As at 31 March 2020, the developments in the retail sector and the future
carrying amounts of the right-of-use assets and property, operating plans for the Group;
plant and equipment excluding the revalued land and
buildings held for own use were HK$23,803,000 and e  Evaluating the reasonableness of the discount rates
HK$3,059,000 respectively. applied in the cash flow forecasts; and
e Evaluating the sensitivity analysis of key assumptions
performed by the management and considering the
resulting impact on the impairment of right-of-use
assets and property, plant and equipment whether
there were any indicators of management bias.
Moiselle International Holdings Limited % i B9 B 4 1 & [ 4 w] Annual Report 2020 4 £ 4 #
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of inventories

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit | Our procedures in relation to valuation of inventories

matter because of the inherent estimation uncertainty | included:

within the assumptions made by management when

determining the provision of inventories. e Obtaining an understanding of the basis used to
determine the inventory provision policy and the

Management has determined the allowance for obsolete information used by management to determine the

and slow-moving inventory items at the end of reporting inventory provisions;

period with reference to the aged inventories analysis,

historical consumption trends and by comparing the | e  Testing, on a sample basis, whether items in the

carrying amount of inventories with their estimated net inventory ageing report were classified within the

realisable values, primarily based on the latest selling appropriate ageing brackets by comparing the

prices. individual items selected with underlying records
which indicated the season of production of the

As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amount of inventories item;

was HK$54,862,000.

e Testing the mathematical accuracy of inventory
provisions made by management;

e Evaluating the reasonableness of management’s
inventory provision policy by comparing
management’s forecasts of the net amounts of unsold
inventories of each season with the historical sales
trends for the current and prior years; and

* Assessing the reasonableness of management’s
estimates of the net realisable values of the
inventories including the comparison of the amounts,
on a sample basis, to actual sales transactions
subsequent to the reporting date.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
Valuation of investment properties and land and buildings held for own use
We identified the valuation of investment properties and | Our procedures in relation to valuation of investment
land and buildings held for own use as a key audit matter | properties and land and buildings held for own use
because the valuations of these properties requires the | included:
exercise of significant judgement and estimation which
increases the risk of error or potential management bias. e  Obtaining and inspecting the valuation reports
prepared by the external property valuer engaged by
The fair values of the investment properties and land and the Group and on which the directors’ assessment of
buildings held for own use were assessed by the directors the fair values of investment properties and land and
based on independent valuations prepared by an buildings held for own use was based;
independent professional firm of surveyors. The key
estimates and assumptions adopted by the external e Assessing the external property valuer’s
property valuer included capitalisation rate and the qualifications, experience and expertise in the
selection of comparable market transactions. properties being valued and considering their
objectivity and independence;
The Group’s investment properties and land and buildings
held for own use were valued at HK$259,598,000 and | e Discussing with the external property valuer, to
HK$368,668,000 as at 31 March 2020, respectively. understand the valuation methodology applied and
the key estimates and assumptions adopted in their
valuations and assess the reasonableness; and
e Comparing the significant unobservable inputs and
comparable market transactions adopted by the
external property valuer with available market data,
on a sample basis.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

Annual Report 2020 4 £ 4 #




BREASEREMERAR SRR (A)
(REE#HEZMAELZERLA)

BREMBEAREMBRRAENEL

EMNER RYRSUBBREBES A FHEH
REFRERMERNEAERRARNESER
& WHEEREMERNZBE RS - RIFER
BEENHERRE BT FRER) RS Kit
ZOARERERLME R - KBRS RENA
A HEMHMATESHAESE  SERER
BAKFHRE  ETRERBER(BTBETER)E
THES AR -EAHERRAFEFRERR -
SRR AT LA RFFREE SRS - MRS ERBE
MEBNERERTELEFS M BIRREME MK
IR R TR NEERE - I BEAHERRML
ARBEEEK -

ERBE(BBEANEN)ETHEANBRESD  HMAE
R7TEEHE RETEEEREE - HAT :

o RABIFFEANARFRERMEZELRS PHR
REEERERMANER - Rt RATET
RFUEHELEAR URERZEMEEN
EiRE  FRABRMERNER - ANEEER
BEWREE A ERER - ERMRL
ERNREES 2 £ H L REE R E K
BYMEAHRBRAN AR SR AREEREHE
EJik-E GOE PN - 235 Sul: o)

o  THEFRTHEBANAIES  URIAEENE
iR BEMXFYE BEEERBEHNE
MMEBRIER -

Annual Report 2020 4 4

T8 S A Sl e
Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's

internal control.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ B B 4 4 4 [t 2 #]
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group

to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance

regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of

the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED (continued)
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the

independent auditor’s report is Wong Yan Wah.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

17 July 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE-_T-ZTF=A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

t et 33 —E-NE
2020 2019
o = FHET FTHET
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
W = Revenue 5 191,604 251,021
HEM A Cost of sales (44,571) (45,793)
ER Gross profit 147,033 205,228
H i A Other income 6 7,105 6,118
Hitzm R EE Other gains and losses 7 (2,730) 1,703
DEERIEERE Distribution and selling expenses (204,879) (189,665)
THREMEERAX Administrative and other operating expenses (65,663) (68,289)
KEEE Loss from operations (119,134) (44,905)
REMEIAAREEF 2 (Loss) gain on changes in fair value of
(E518) W= investment properties 14 (25,425) 27,790
HENE ARz W m Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 34 - 356
BEEERATR 2 %E Share of results of a joint venture = 131
il & AR AN Finance costs (4,824) (510)
BREAIEE Loss before taxation (149,383) (17,138)
FriEfEe () Income tax credit (expense) 8 2,917 (2,703)
FREE Loss for the year 9 (146,466) (19,841)
Hv 2 (B %) Wi Other comprehensive (expense) income
ETEEF s HEEEsw 2 Item that will not be reclassified to
EH : profit or loss:
BEBRLHREEY (Loss) gain on revaluation of land and
ZEM(ER) W& buildings held for own use (8,547) 56,285
RABAHEET 7 HEZE Item that may be reclassified subsequently to
BEmZEE profit or loss:
BREBMIEBZER Exchange differences arising on translation
=5 of foreign operations 2,901 (10,814)
(5,646) 45,471
AEEZHE(BX) W Total comprehensive (expense) income
nE for the year (152,112) 25,630

Moiselle International Holdings Limited % i B9 B 4 1 & [ 4 w]
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
HE-ZT-ZTF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

b g 52 —E-NEF
2020 2019
B = FHET FHER
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
THALEERFEERE Loss for the year attributable to:
EATEHEEA Owners of the Company (146,694) (19,717)
FERER Non-controlling interests 228 (124)
(146,466) (19,841)
THALEEZE(BEAXR) Total comprehensive (expense) income
Wi EE attributable to:
KATEFA Owners of the Company (152,340) 25,754
FERER Non-controlling interests 228 (124)
(152,112) 25,630
BRER Loss per share
HAR (B Basic (HK dollars) 13 (0.51) (0.07)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

M=ZZT=ZFTF=HA=+—H At 31 March 2020

—EZEF —E-hEF
2020 2019
Mt =E THET TERT
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
FRBEE Non-current assets
BREME Investment properties 14 259,598 282,725
M- BERRZE Property, plant and equipment 14 371,727 402,444
GERESE Right-of-use assets 15 23.803 _
- ’
B®e Deposits paid 16 24,714 27,775
BEFRESHERE Deferred tax assets 22 566 600
680,408 713,544
REBEE Current assets
(3 nventories 17 54,862 59,495
EWEHR R L MbEKs  Trade and other receivables 18 27,205 35,557
BTREBRES Bank balances and cash 19 31,829 30,720
113,896 125,772
nEEE Current liabilities
FE AT BR R R H A FE AT X Trade and other payables 20 42,954 39,207
HEEE Lease liabilities 21 61,593 -
FEAS B8 Tax payable 119 103
BE Borrowings 23 34,080 6,492
EiEANEE Provision for onerous contracts 24 - 4,461
138,746 50,263
hE(AE) EEFE Net current (liabilities) assets (24,850) 75,509
EELERRBEE Total assets less current liabilities 655,558 789,053
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
MWZE-_TEFE=HF=+—H At 31 March 2020

—2-%F —B-h%
2020 2019
B & FTET FET
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
FEREBEE Non-current liabilities
HEERE Lease liabilities 21 27 067 .
’
ELEFREHAR Deferred tax liabilities 29 97 953 102.850
’ ’
125,020 102,850
ﬁgﬁﬁ Net assets 530,538 686,203
EXRR & Capital and reserves
[ Share capital 25 2,880 2,880
et Reserves 528,178 684,071
ERRERAEMN Equity attributable to owners of
IR R fE = the Company 531,058 686,951
FERER Non-controlling interests (520) (748)

ESARIEZHRMBHRRENR -T2 F LA
TEtHRESERELHTHRL  YATHESK

REE

Annual Report 2020 4 ¥4 #

Chan Yum Kit
DIRECTOR
5=

The consolidated financial statements on pages 54 to 168 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
17 July 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Tsui How Kiu, Shirley
(=357
DIRECTOR
£
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-_T-ZTF=A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2020
FAARAARE
Attributable to owners of the Company
REER
(BiER)
EERRLR  NREGRR Retained FERER
R RbiE L4 ] EiRE Statutory Property profis N BRREE
Share Share Other Exchange reserve revaluation  (accumulated it controlling Total
apital premium reserve reserve funds reserve losses) Total interests equity
TEn Tn Tin TEn TEn Tén T TEn TEn Tén
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
(3t (W)
(Note i) (Note i

HZ2-N\5MA-A At1 April 2018 2,880 05,327 Ul 30,088 9,336 400,651 164311 72,714 (624) 672,09

EREE Loss for the year - - - - - - (19,717) (19,717) (124) 19,841)

BEERLOREENL Gain on revaluaton ofland and buildings held

Efths for own use - - 66,788 - 06,788 - 06,788

EftEFARLER Income tax relating o revaluation of land and

BN FER buildings held for own use - - - 10,503) 5 (10,503) = 10,503
BESNRHAELL Exchange diference arsing fom transation of

EiZE foreign operation - - (10614) - - - (10814) - (10814
Ak (RR) 48 Total comprehensive income (expenses) - - (10814) - 56,285 (19,717) 25,754 (124 15,630
HERERERERH L Revaluation surplus transerred to retained

EfiRH profts upon disposal - - - 194 1,94 - - -

R (K1) Dividends (note 12) = = = = (11,517) (11,517) = (11,517)

R=5-AE=A=1-R At31 March 2019 2,880 05,327 11 19274 9,336 455,012 135,001 686,951 (748) 686,203

FRERUBALENZ16%2  Adjustment on adoption of HKFRS 16 (note 2

ELA(R) - - - - - (3553) (3,55) - (3553)

R=5-1EMA-A AT April 2019 2,880 05,327 M 19,274 9,336 455,012 131,448 083,398 (748) 682,650

EREE Loss for the year - - - - - - (146,694) (146,694) m (146,466)

BERALERERZ Loss on evaluaton ofland and buidings held

EfbER for own use - - - - 9,952) - (9952) - (9,952)

BiERERALIR Income tax elating o revaluation of land and

BEN2FER buildings held for own use - - - - 1405 - 1405 - 1405
BEENZRAEL, Exchange difference arising from transltion of
ERZE foreign operation = = = 2,901 = = = 2901 - 2901

A (F3) Wl Total comprehensive (expenses) income o o - 2901 a (8,547) (146,694) (152,340) 08 (152,112)

WZBEE-A=1-f At31 March 2020 2,880 05,327 m 0175 9,336 446,463 (15,246) 531,058 (520) 530,538

Bt 5 Notes:

(i) Ht#FEEBEER=ZEE-_F—HA=-+HHB ’:'EBZ‘S(ZZ'X (i) Other reserve represents the difference between the nominal value
B S AH WS 2 Y BB A B 2 AR 7N T 1B B 3 Lt 4 of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal
RREZARACHITRACEHEZEZSRE ° value of the shares of the Company issued in exchange thereof

pursuant to a group reorganisation which became effective on 25
January 2002.

(i) WBEIBBECEBAZ2PEARAME ([ (i)  According to the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) laws
Bl ) AR RABZHBEIAMMEQAARLM applicable to wholly-owned foreign investment enterprises, the
BEEBSBLE  DRBFEEESRBIRER Mainland China subsidiaries of the Company are required to set up
BRES BRBIRBEESELRBEER two statutory reserve funds, general reserve fund and staff general
BB (ERBEDERE) 210%E B EHEE fund. General reserve fund was set up by appropriating at least
SN BEEZES 2 AREEHEMER 250% 10% of their annual profit after taxation, as determined under PRC
Al  WEESTAFEEHBERBERASHUEE regulations, until the balance of the fund reaches 50% of their
AR - MEANBHREBARZESEAMERE registered capital. This fund can be used to make good losses or to
BREGEFERETHIRARENES - R-2 convert into paid-in capital. Transfer from retained profits to staff
ZERFETHASTEREBRIANRER  H=FTRF general fund was made at the discretion of the board of directors of
—A—BE FEEBTEREESEE ALY the Mainland China subsidiaries. Starting from 1 January 2006, the
EOBMTIRBRENESFHER - transfer is no longer a statutory obligation upon the revision of the

law on 27 October 2005 and no transfer to staff general fund has
been made since.
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HEBESREER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE-ZT-ZTF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

b g 52 ZE-NF
2020 2019
THET THER
HK$’000 HK$'000
ReETH Operating activities
BREL A 1B Loss before taxation (149,383) (17,138)
BT SIE LR Adjustments for:
& A Finance costs 4,824 510
FE WA Interest income (33) (361)
REMEIREBEEBH2EE Loss (gain) on changes in fair value of
(K z) investment properties 25,425 (27,790)
ME BMERREZFTE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 16,865 19,377
EREEEZITE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 58,275 -
ME - RERREZRERE Impairment losses on property, plant and
equipment 7,525 1,478
EREEE 2RERE Impairment losses on right-of-use assets 43,623 -
EBiESNBE TR Provision for onerous contract, net - 2,563
FE W BR R 2 BB B 18 Impairment losses on trade receivables 81 =
7 & BRI 33 [E] Reversal of write-down of inventories (244) (8,133)
RERLEESNFMEE Gain arising on early termination of lease
Al & contracts (431) =
HEMB ATz W= Gain on disposal of a subsidiary = (356)
HEME BERSZEZ Loss on disposal of property, plant and
&8 equipment 1,123 13
BEEE DR 2¥E Share of results of a joint venture = (131)
REHE L EIRFEE Unrealised exchange loss, net - 1,131
RTEEESEBA 2 Operating cash flows before movements in
KREFERE working capital 7,650 (28,837)
&R EE M Increase in deposits paid = (2,241)
BFERD (M) Decrease (increase) in inventories 5,557 (3,844)
EWREE D ARERD Decrease in amount due from a joint venture = 131
JE W BR R % LAt FE R 2 Decrease in trade and other receivables
DN 8,795 7,420
ENERRRAEMEMSRZ Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables
#hn GRid) 9,119 (2,710)
EEENEBERD Decrease in provisions for onerous contracts (865) -
REXBREB (A RE Cash from (used in) operations 30,256 (30,081)
ENHIA Tax paid
-—ENERNEHR - Hong Kong Profits Tax paid - (14)
- BB BENTER - Income tax outside Hong Kong paid (571) (1,745)
RETHME (R BEESFE Net cash from (used in) operating activities 29,685 (31,840)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE-_T-ZTF=A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

t et 33 —E-NE
2020 2019
FHET THET
HK$’000 HK$'000
REEE Investing activities
HEREMEZRBRE Proceeds from disposal of an investment property = 41,693
2 lFE Interest received 33 307
BAYME - BERRE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (7,364) (11,881)
XHHEERE Payment of rental deposits (2,219) -
REHERS Refund of rental deposits 3,819 -
BAREYXZENEZEE Deposit paid for acquisition of investment
properties = (12,094)
RETE(FTA)MBESEE Net cash (used in) from investing activities (5,731) 18,025
MEED Financing activities
FEEZMERE Proceeds from new borrowings 28,169 =
ENARAAREERRZRE Dividends paid to equity shareholders of the
Company - (11,517)
EERTEE Repayment of bank borrowings (581) (581)
EEHEEE Repayment of lease liabilities (48,597) -
ENFE Interest paid (4,824) (510)
MEZDRAREEER Net cash used in financing activities (25,833) (12,608)
RERREEEYNRD FHE Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,879) (26,423)
RENMZREREAESZEEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the
year 30,720 62,173
Exgs o8 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 2,988 (5,030)
RERZRERAESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year,
RERBITEHRRRES representing bank balances and cash 31,829 30,720
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-ZT-ZTF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

GENERAL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Moiselle International Holdings Limited (the “Company”;
and its subsidiaries collectively referred to as the “Group”)
is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability under the Companies Law,
Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Its
ultimate holding company is Super Result Consultants
Limited (“Super Result”), a limited company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands. Mr. Chan Yum Kit, the chairman
and executive director of the Company, and Ms. Tsui How
Kiu, Shirley, executive director of the Company, each holds
46.7% equity interest in Super Result. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the section of Corporate

Information in the Company’s annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are
design, manufacture and retail of fashion apparel and
accessories. Details of the principal subsidiaries of the

Company are set out in note 34.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is also the functional and

presentation currency of the Company.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries, the directors of the Company
(the “Directors”) have given careful consideration to the
future liquidity of the Group in light of the fact that the
Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
approximately HK$24,850,000 as at 31 March 2020.
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GENERAL AND BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group generated
operating cash flows of approximately HK$29,685,000. As
at 31 March 2020, total cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$31,829,000 were held by the Group and
unutilised bank facilities amounted to approximately
HK$23,101,000 were available. Subsequent to the year
end, the Group negotiated with a bank for the revision of a
bank facility not exceeding HK$65,000,000. The facilities
are still subject to the completion of legal procedure
relating to the registration of charge over the security
provided by the Group. The Directors do not anticipate any
significant difficulties in the completion of the said legal

procedure.

Based on the aforesaid factors, the Directors are satisfied
that the Group will have sufficient financial resources to
meet in full its financial obligations as and when they fall
due for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a

going concern basis.
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HE-ZT-ZTF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group have applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs and interpretation issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases
HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9  Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015 — 2017 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs and interpretation in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated

financial statements.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”
The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 “Leases”, and

the related interpretations.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified as
leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) - Int 4
“Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”
and not apply this standard to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease. Therefore, the
Group has not reassessed contracts which already existed

prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 April
2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease in
accordance with the requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in

assessing whether a contract contains a lease.

As a lessee
The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial

application, 1 April 2019.

As at 1 April 2019, the Group recognised additional lease
liabilities and measured right-of-use assets at the carrying
amounts as if HKFRS 16 had been applied since
commencement dates, but discounted using the
incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group entities at
the date of initial application by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(i)
transition. Any difference at the date of initial application is
recognised in the opening retained profits and comparative

information has not been restated.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-ZT-ZTF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily

effective for the current year (continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

When applying the modified retrospective approach under

HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the following

practical expedients to leases previously classified as

operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis, to

the extent relevant to the respective lease contracts:

relied on the assessment of whether leases are onerous
by applying HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets” as an alternative of

impairment review;

elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases with lease term ends within 12

months of the date of initial application;

excluded initial direct costs from measuring the

right-of-use assets at the date of initial application;

applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with similar remaining terms for similar class of
underlying assets in similar economic environment;

and

used hindsight based on facts and circumstances as at
date of initial application in determining the lease
term for the Group’s leases with extension and

termination options.

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously

classified as operating leases, the Group has applied

incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group entities at

the date of initial application. The weighted average

incremental borrowing rate applied by the relevant group
entities is 3.58%.
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2. ERAFHTEBBRELED ((HEBYHER 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
LB ) RIBETAR (&) KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)
REERFERZHTEBYBRELENRE New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
R A (42) effective for the current year (continued)
BB BHEER El167 [HHE | (&) HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)
1EBERHEAN () As a lessee (continued)
R=-ZF-N%&
A—H
At
1 April 2019
FHET
HK$’000
RZE-—NE=A=1+t—"HKEZ Operating lease commitments disclosed as at
RS TH B R E 31 March 2019 157,126
W R=E-NFNE—H Less: Lease committed but not yet commenced
EREHERBAHR2ES as at 1 April 2019 (16,293)
ATEEREZ-HEHBEER Practical expedient — leases with lease term
ERBHERBI2EARGERZ ending 12 months from the date of initial
HE application (22,756)
118,077
REEE B2 ERAREER Discounting at relevant incremental borrowings rates (3,278)
m:HEBTREHEREEZ Add: Lease liabilities resulting from lease modification
HESE (W) of existing leases (Note) 636
WARBER=ZZE—-NLFE=A Lease liabilities of leases not included in
=+—HERBELKEHE disclosed operating lease commitment as at
AETZHENHEHERSE 31 March 2019 1,902
117,337
pai) Analysed as
ED Current 55,818
IERED Non-current 61,519
117,337
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-ZT-ZTF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

Note: The Group renewed the leases of certain existing retail
stores by entering into new lease contracts which
commence after date of initial application. These new
contracts are accounted as lease modifications of the
existing contracts upon application of HKFRS 16.

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own use as at

WEEEEAE TH&RIE 1 April 2019 comprises the following:
EREEE
Right-of-use
assets
B & FTHET
Notes HK$’000
RERE BN KRS EL Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases
EloMBECRIAELERS recognised upon application of HKFRS 16
MEZERREEE 113,784
BIEEBEHERAE1755 A Amounts included in property, plant and equipment
MHE - BERKENEE under HKAS 17
- BERERKA — Restoration and reinstatements costs (i) 359
W RZE—NFEMAB—HM Less: Accrued lease liabilities at 1 April 2019
EstHEaE (ii) (5,621)
RZE-NFENE—HH Provision for onerous leases at T April 2019
BIEASRE (iii) (3,596)
104,926
RER By class:
T RIBEY Land and buildings 104,926
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

BRAEBERFEACSEEHEENS -
REZB-NFHA—H » ZAFTAYE K
ERRET 2 EREBYEMGRA ZRE
{359,000 8B TE T AEREEE -

(i)

EHEEHEAMYEEERERAS 2 (i)
BsrAEaEREEMER - HENRE
B-R-Z-NFHNA—-B EBURIAKHE
WENFIAET 2B HEEEZRAEE R
BESARZEREEE -

BIRAERE (iii)
BEHERYHTEEH 2B REERESR
B-R-Z-NFHNA—H ZEBREZRK
HECRBENAREEAEEE -
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New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

Notes:

In relation to the leases of retail stores that the Group acts as
lessee, the carrying amount of the estimated costs of
reinstating the rented premises previously included in
property, plant and equipment amounting to HK$359,000 as
at 1 April 2019 were included as right-of-use assets.

These relate to accrued lease liabilities for leases of properties
in which the lessors provided rent-free period and lease
payments increase progressively over lease terms. The
carrying amount of the accrued lease liabilities under trade
and other payables as at 1 April 2019 was adjusted to
right-of-use assets at transition.

Provisions for onerous leases
These relate to provisions for onerous leases for several retail

stores. The carrying amount of the provisions as at 1 April
2019 was adjusted to right-of-use assets at transition.
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2. ERAFTEBYBREED ([HEBYER 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG

LB ) RIBETA (& KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

REERFERZHTEBYBRELENRE New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
R A () effective for the current year (continued)
BEEBYBHEERE167 [ HE (&) HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)
ERAMA () As a lessee (continued)
RZZ-—NFHA-—BEREHHBMRRREER The following adjustments were made to the amounts
NEHESHFEEHUTHAE TEBFEREZEE recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
FEWHEE - position at 1 April 2019. Line items that were not affected

by the changes have not been included.

R=Z-NF
R-B-h#F mA—H
=HR=t+-H REBE B
REZ5H wmEER
fREE F165% M ARE E
Carrying amounts Carrying amounts
previously under
reported at AR HKFRS 16 at
31 March 2019 Adjustments 1 April 2019
TET THERT THET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FRBEE Non-current assets
Y% BERRE Property, plant and equipment 402,444 (359) 402,085
FREEE Right-of-use assets = 104,926 104,926
REBEE Current liabilities
JE £ BR 0 e L B AT R Trade and other payables 39,207 (5,621) 33,586
BREAHNERE Provision for onerous contracts 4,461 (3,596) 865
HEERE Lease liabilities = 55,818 55,818
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
HEAE Lease liabilities = 61,519 61,519
XK f#B Capital and reserves
ERE] Reserves 684,071 (3,553) 680,518
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating
activities under indirect method for the year ended 31
March 2020, movements in working capital have been
computed based on opening consolidated statement of

financial position as at 1 April 2019 as disclosed above.

As a lessor

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16,
the Group is not required to make any adjustment on
transition for leases in which the Group is a lessor but
account for these leases in accordance with HKFRS 16 from
the date of initial application and comparative information

has not been restated.

(@) Upon application of HKFRS 16, new lease contracts
entered into but commence after the date of initial
application relating to the same underlying assets
under existing lease contracts are accounted as if the
existing leases are modified as at 1 April 2019. The
application has had no impact on the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position at 1 April
2019. However, effective 1 April 2019, lease
payments relating to the revised lease term after
modification are recognised as income on straight-line

basis over the extended lease term.

(b) Before application of HKFRS 16, refundable rental
deposits received were considered as rights and
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applied
under other payables and rental deposits received.
Based on the definition of lease payments under
HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to
the right-of-use assets and were adjusted to reflect the

discounting effect at transition.
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2. FEAFIEBVMBEREELN ([FBUER 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
EER ) RIBFT A (& KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)
FEEBRHERZHIEBMBERELEURE New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
R A () effective for the current year (continued)
EENBHEEREI6% [ HE (&) HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)
EBHFHEA () As a lessor (continued)
EREBUBREENE16HZEREUH The application of HKFRS 16 has had no significant impact
BERFANERSER SIHRELBREAY on the amounts reported and/or disclosures set out in these
& consolidated financial statements.
SHEMEERERZHATERUBREENR New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
EHES effective
BERUBHREENE 175 REEQ HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'
BERUBREENE 16352 20198 R FEE KM Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19 — Related Rent
CHEN BzHERRE Concessions®
BRMBREERNEI Rz EB2ER Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?
CHEN
EEMBHEEENE R REABSIER Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
CHES Framework®
ERUBBRELENEI0RK REFHEABRZ A Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
BBEERE28 2 AgAELE and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
BEI A BELHERIE’ Associate or Joint Venture?
BREEHENEINRESE EAZER' Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material*
ERRLE L AL HEN and HKAS 8
EREEAE 16K 2B UE - BERRK Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
x B 1ERERR — Proceeds before
A B P 48 5R0RS Intended Use®
BRBETENE7R BEEN-BTE Amendments to HKAS 37  Onerous Contracts — Cost of
BRI A 2 A Fulfilling a Contract’
ERMEHEERES - RMEREERE Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
ERBEHERFEINK HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform*
BRPBREERE7HR
BRI A
BENBMEENZBITAR BENBREED Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvements to
—E-N\FE HKFRSs 2018 — 2020°
—B-2EY
FEKE
] R=FB=Z—F—-A-BRZEMARZFES ! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
B M 2021
: HEBABR-F-FTF—A—BHZER 2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for
BHEEFEER AN ZRETHRBEH which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
REEWBENR first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020
’ Ri§ THEE AR % B e 2 FEAREN > Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined
! R=Z=FF-A-BRZEMBZFES *  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
BN 2020
’ R=B=-=F—-A-AHZEMARZFESN > Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
B4 2022
° mii:gif\ﬂ —BRzERBRZFES ¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020
B4
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs,
a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
was issued in 2018. Its consequential amendments, the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in
HKFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the Directors anticipate that the application of all
other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in

the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 “Definition of
Material”

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of
material by including additional guidance and explanations
in making materiality judgements. In particular, the

amendments:

* include the concept of “obscuring” material
information in which the effect is similar to omitting

or misstating the information;

e replace threshold for materiality influencing users from
“could influence” to “could reasonably be expected to

influence”; and

e include the use of the phrase “primary users” rather
than simply referring to “users” which was considered
too broad when deciding what information to disclose

in the financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-ZT-ZTF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 “Definition of
Material” (continued)

The amendments also align the definition across all HKFRSs
and will be mandatorily effective for the Group’s annual
period beginning on 1 April 2020. The application of the
amendments is not expected to have significant impact on
the financial position and performance of the Group but
may affect the presentation and disclosures in the

consolidated financial statements.

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“New Framework”) and the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards

The New Framework:

e  reintroduces the terms stewardship and prudence;

e introduces a new asset definition that focuses on rights
and a new liability definition that is likely to be
broader than the definition it replaces, but does not
change the distinction between a liability and an
equity instrument;

e discusses historical cost and current value measures,
and provides additional guidance on how to select a

measurement basis for a particular asset or liability;

e states that the primary measure of financial
performance is profit or loss, and that only in
exceptional circumstances other comprehensive
income will be used and only for income or expenses
that arise from a change in the current value of an

asset or liability; and

e discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of account,
the reporting entity and combined financial
statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“New Framework”) and the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards
(continued)

Consequential amendments have been made so that
references in certain HKFRSs have been updated to the
New Framework, whilst some HKFRSs are still referred to
the previous versions of the framework. These amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020, with earlier application permitted. Other
than specific standards which still refer to the previous
versions of the framework, the Group will rely on the New
Framework on its effective date in determining the
accounting policies especially for transactions, events or
conditions that are not otherwise dealt with under the

accounting standards.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 “Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions”
The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods

beginning on or after 1 June 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-ZT-ZTF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 “Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions” (continued)

The amendment introduces a new practical expedient for
lessees to elect not to assess whether a Covid-19-related
rent concession is a lease modification. The practical
expedient only applies to rent concessions occurring as a
direct consequence of the Covid-19 that meets all of the

following conditions:

e the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease

immediately preceding the change;

e any reduction in lease payments affects only payments

originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

e there is no substantive change to other terms and

conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent concessions
the same way it would account for the changes applying
HKFRS 16 “Leases” if the changes were not a lease
modification. Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are

accounted for as variable lease payments.

The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the
amounts forgiven or waived with a corresponding
adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in the period in

which the event occurs.

The Directors do not expect to have significant impact to
the Group with regards to the application of the

amendment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for the investment
properties and leasehold land and buildings, which are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period,

as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment”, leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1 April 2019) or HKAS
17 (before application of HKFRS 16), and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories”

or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-ZT-ZTF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the

asset in its highest and best use.

For investment properties which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique with unobservable inputs is to be
used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that the results of the

valuation technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity

can access at the measurement date;
e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. When assessing whether the Group has power,
only substantive rights (held by the Group and other

parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to

the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests
that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to measure any
non-controlling interests either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the

subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-ZT-ZTF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the

Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no

gain or loss is recognised.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment

losses.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. These include land

held for a currently undetermined future use.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any indirectly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at fair value, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or
accrued operating lease income. Gains or losses arising
from a change in fair value or from the retirement or
disposal of an investment property is recognised in profit or

loss for the period in which they arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties (continued)

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for as

an investment property on a property-by-property basis.

Property, plant and equipment

The land held for own use and buildings thereon are stated
at their revalued amount, being their fair value at the date
of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated

depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity to
ensure that the carrying amount of these assets does not
differ materially from that which would be determined

using fair values at the end of the reporting period.

Other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at

cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties held for
own use are generally dealt with in other comprehensive
income and are accumulated separately in equity in the
property revaluation reserve. The only exceptions are as

follows:

e when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be charged
to profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the
amount held in the reserve in respect of that same

asset immediately prior to the revaluation; and

e when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a deficit on
revaluation in respect of that same asset had

previously been charged to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-ZT-ZTF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or
loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any related
revaluation surplus is transferred from the property
revaluation reserve to retained profits and is not reclassified

to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation
of items of property, plant and equipment, less their
estimated residual value, if any, using the straight line

method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over
the shorter of the unexpired terms of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being 50 years from the date of

completion.

Leasehold improvements ~ Over the shorter of 5 years and
the period of the lease
Plant and machinery 10 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 to 10 years

Computer and office 3 to 5 years
equipment
Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item
is allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of
an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed

annually.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to

the relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented as
“right-of-use assets” (upon application of HKFRS 16) in the
consolidated statement of financial position except for
those that are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model. When the
consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in the
underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are

classified as property, plant and equipment.

Leases

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a

period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless the
terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently

changed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of

the non-lease components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated

non-lease components as a single lease component.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of leasehold land and buildings that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option.
It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of
low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight-line basis or another systematic basis over the lease

term.

The Group as a lessee

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease

liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives

received;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms

and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and

adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease

term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line

item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”) and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments

and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In
calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease

is not readily determinable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-ZT-ZTF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable; and

e payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rate are not included in the measurement of lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets, and are recognised as
expense in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)

whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised

discount rate at the date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review, in which
case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the

initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item

on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate

lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;

and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for
the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances

of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised

discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of

the non-lease components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-ZT-ZTF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as lessee (prior to 1 April 2019)

Lease are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on

a straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised

as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

The Group as lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee,
the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases

are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term
except for investment properties measured under fair value

model.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as lessor (continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers” to allocate consideration in a
contract to lease and non-lease components. Non-lease
components are separated from lease component on the

basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are

considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the lease

payments for the new lease.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the

extent of the impairment loss, if any.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited % i B9 B 4 1 & [ 4 w] Annual Report 2020 4 £ 4 #




Annual Report 2020 4 4

TEEHBE (H)
NE - BERRBUREREEE ZRE (&)

ME - BERRBUREAREEN TR S
BALERMEE M AREBGHTREE
HAREERAHEENBREESELEENMHN
AREEHE - I AEEHEEEFREAT
RAEEAEH TR EETML - MiFERE
FE - RAHNSE - SN EEER AT
EETEIEEMENREELE N TRAE
EEEIRETRRNGE —BoBREENRE
EEBMHENAER -

ATREESEAAABREERAEEREET
MESE - FEEREER A RERRER
ERARREEHSHERSEHEEREE (H
BREELEN) 2B ERBFEHOBA BRRE
TERRE - MAFARRRSRILAREAR -

Ao A S 25 A Mk

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-ZT-ZTF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets (continued)

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In
addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been

adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an asset is
not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro
rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group
of cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their

present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the

sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an

expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising
from contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial

liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to

collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.
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HE-ZT-ZTF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets

(continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset

is no longer credit-impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including
deposits paid, trade and other receivables and bank
balances) which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9.
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to

reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessments are made
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to debtors, general
economic conditions and assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of

future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed

individually.

For all other financial assets, ECL is measured at 12m ECL
unless when there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, in which case the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases
in likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial

recognition.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without

undue cost or effort.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or

internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread or the credit default swap

prices for the borrower or debtor;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
borrower’s or debtor’s ability to meet its debt

obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in

the operating results of the borrower or debtor; and

e an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environments of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the borrower’s or debtor’s

ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information

that demonstrates otherwise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking

into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is

more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired

includes observable data about the following events:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

e a breach of contract, such as a default or past due

event;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-ZT-ZTF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

e the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would

not otherwise consider; or

e it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings, whichever
occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are

recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with

the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)
Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the

effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost

of the financial asset.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the

definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue

costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and
secured bank borrowings) are subsequently measured at

amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-ZT-ZTF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets expire.
On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when and only
when the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Revenue from contracts with customers
The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance

|//

obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is

transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when

the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of

consideration is due) from the customer.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be

material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of
tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous

years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-ZT-ZTF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses

and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future
taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss (from which
the deferred tax asset arises) can be carried back or
forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not
part of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy set out above, the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the
tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their
carrying value at the reporting date unless the property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of the
assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to

the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 “Income Taxes” requirements to the leasing transaction
as a whole. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis.
Excess of depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease
payments for the principal portion of lease liabilities

resulting in net deductible temporary differences.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will

be available.
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BHE

ZE-TF=R=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the individual entity or the Group
has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following additional

conditions are met:

e in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
individual entity or the Group intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the

liability simultaneously; or

e in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net

basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation, legal or constructive, as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can

be made of the amount of the obligation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Provisions (continued)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the

time value of money is material).

Onerous contracts

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are
recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous
contract is considered to exist where the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the economic

benefits expected to be received from the contract.

For onerous contracts relating to leases in which the Group
opts to apply HKFRS 16.C10(b) practical expedient at date
of initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group adjusted the
amount of provision for onerous leases recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position immediately
before the date of initial application to the relevant

right-of-use assets.

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains

and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited % i B9 B 4 1 & [ 4 w] Annual Report 2020 4 £ 4 #




Annual Report 2020 4 ¥4 #

TEEHBER(A)

s (&)
BBERTUMNEREN 2 FEBHEERE
B BEXZHZERTE - LD AEIIRIL L
IERBENNFERHEERSBRFERR
REERERAZERNE -

BRBIIEB 2 RERPRN 2 FHERRER
BT BRIEE RN B A KR K B B AE B
o RUERT  AIRAXZ B ZER - §f
BARRRIAE A ZRBEPRZWTERBRES
B -EECERZARAEMEE K EHE
Ao WRRRER 2 E R EEE LR -

EHETBRIIERE  HZEBRINEER
AR ELXZHETRAHE ST HEE
NHRRERER S EEERR -

BERA

HWE HEEREEEE (IFE-—RERK
BEGRERA R ARRHEZEE)E
BRELACEERIERAERRZSEEZH
BRA  BEZRZSEEARB LFEFEFERAE
BITRABRRHERRLL -

REBEENHAREAEREERDAEER
ZEMBEEEDFA-—REERS » UstE
—REEZERER - BEBENBIFSER
BEZXHAAEEEREMRM2RER
A BEBRREFREBERATHR AR
EERAINELHERIBRER -

Ao A S 25 A Mk

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-ZT-ZTF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair
value was measured.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the average exchange rate for the
period unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period in which case the exchange rates at the date of
transactions are used. Statement of financial position items
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating to
that operation outside Hong Kong is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset, which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the
related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is included
in the general borrowing pool for calculation of
capitalisation rate on general borrowings. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties

(i)

(if)

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:

(a)

(b)

(c)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(a)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or

an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (i).
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3. EFEGTEEHE) 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
AL (E) Related parties (continued)
(i) ffFETHEAGRSE - BEREEEEH (i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
= (&) conditions applies: (continued)
@ Ri@FFEIATHEREE RS (g A person identified in (i)(a) has significant
g"ﬂ:ﬁ%u; B (ZERZERQ influence over the entity or is a member of the
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key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

(h) The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel

services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of,

the Group’s various geographical locations.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the Directors are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the Directors have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that certain of the
Group’s investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s
deferred taxation on investment properties, the Directors
have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties in the Mainland China
measured using the fair value model are recovered entirely
through sale is rebutted. For certain investment properties
in Hong Kong on which the ‘sale’ presumption is not
rebutted, the Group has not recognised any deferred tax on
changes in fair value of investment properties in Hong
Kong above the qualified cost as the Group is not subject to
any income taxes on the fair value changes of the
investment properties in Hong Kong above the qualified

cost on disposal.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(continued)

Determination on incremental borrowing rate of lease
contracts

In determining incremental borrowing rates of lease
contracts, the Group applies judgement to determine the
applicable rates, taking into account the nature of the
underlying assets and the terms and conditions of the leases
at both the commencement date and the effective date of
the modification to calculate the present value of lease
payments. The incremental borrowing rates the Group
applied significantly affect the amounts of lease liabilities

and right-of-use assets recognised.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

The Group assesses regularly whether property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets have any indication of
impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable
amounts of the cash-generating units to which these assets
belong would be determined by reference to the higher of
their value in use or fair value less costs of disposal. Value
in use is determined using the discounted cash flow
method. Due to inherent risk associated with estimations in
the timing and magnitude of the future cash flows
calculated with certain growth rate as key input and fair
value less costs of disposal, the estimated recoverable
amount of the assets may be different from their actual
recoverable amount and profit or loss could be affected by

the accuracy of the estimations.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Valuation of inventories

The Group performs regular review of the carrying amounts
of inventories with reference to aged inventories analysis,
historical consumption trends and management judgement.
Based on this review, write-down of inventories will be
made when the carrying amounts of inventories decline
below their estimated net realisable value. Due to changes
in market trends, actual consumption may be different from
estimation and profit or loss could be affected by accuracy

of this estimation.

Valuation of investment properties and land and buildings
held for own use

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties and
land and buildings held for own use are calculated by an
independent firm of surveyors by making reference to the
capitalisation rate and comparable market transactions. The
valuation models used by the property valuer make use of
market inputs. Should changes be made to the market
inputs, the corresponding valuation of investment
properties and land and buildings held for own use would

change.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not yet
used and temporary deductible differences. As those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the unused tax credits can be utilised,
management’s judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional deferred
tax assets are recognised if it becomes probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be

recovered.
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HE-ZT-ZTF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue

The Group generated sales of fashion apparel and
accessories with customers through its own retail stores. For
the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, revenue from
sales of fashion apparel and accessories is recognised at a
point in time when the goods are delivered to the

customers.

Performance obligations for contracts with customers

Revenue from sales of fashion apparel and accessories is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred, being
at the point where the customer purchases and takes the
goods at the retail stores directly or when the goods have
been transported to the customers’ specified location
(delivery). Transportation and other related activities that
incurred before customers obtain control of the related
products are considered as fulfilment activities. Payment of
the transaction price is generally due immediately at the
point the customer purchases the goods in the retail stores.
The transaction price received by the Group for goods that
require delivery is recognised as a contract liability until

the goods have been delivered to the customer.

Customer loyalty programme

The Group operates a customer loyalty programme for sales
through the Group’s retail stores where customers
accumulate award points for purchases made which entitle
them to redeem award points as sales discounts in the
future. The transaction price is allocated to the product and
the award points on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis. The award points expire every year and customers
can redeem the award points any time before the specified
expiration date. Revenue from the award points is
recognised when the award points are used or expired.
Contract liabilities are recognised until the award points are
used or expired. The sales discount is recognised against

revenue.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ B B 4 4 4 [t 2 #]

111




Aok 7 S 25 R M i

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T-TF=A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

112

Wik D HEFR (&)
Wik ()
PEHEREFENZB TENEFZXZER

HABTRNEEZEFAN (BREFEH
Est8lzRBED) c RABEHE -—FHNU
T o BB B IREZE R 155 FERFIE
no PBEZEERBTERANEERNE P EH
EFE X ZEBR/ARTHRE -

)

7 ERE R
AEERBEBVEEBEHER - REDALEE
BRITHREZASRB2RUAD BER KT
REZEN - AEEE2HTIMEET
2RO - WELLE T HBRESERUTET 2
] o

s EBEBENRTBHEBZXREREN
An A o

s FEBRNEBERTEANMBREARR
& URARE A~ BP - B RE N
REEBRmEREORE -

AL BRERIEDBERMS - AEHE
ZERITHERASNRUATEEEREAT
EWMDMEMLZFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Revenue (continued)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligation for contracts with customers

Contracts with customers with unsatisfied performance
obligations, including award points under the customer
loyalty programme, have original expected durations of one
year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
prices allocated to these unsatisfied performance
obligations or customer loyalty programme are not

disclosed.

Segment information

The Group manages its businesses by geographical
locations. In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s senior
executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
presented the following two reportable segments. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form the

following reportable segments.

e The Hong Kong operation represents the sales of house

brands and imported brands in Hong Kong.

e The Outside Hong Kong operation represents the
manufacture of house brands in the Mainland China
and sales of house brands and imported brands in the

Mainland China, Macau, Taiwan and Singapore.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results attributable to

each reportable segment on the following bases:
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HE-ZT-ZTF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment information (continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation of assets

attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reportable segment profit or loss is
loss from operations with the exclusion of other income,
other gains and losses and certain administrative and other
operating expenses. Income tax is not allocated to

reportable segments.

Segment assets and liabilities of the Group are not reported
to the Group’s senior executive management. As a result,
reportable segment assets and liabilities have not been

presented in the financial statements.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in

note 3.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ B B 4 4 4 [t 2 #]

113




Aok 7 S 25 R M i

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEZZ-_TF=F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

5. WERDBER (&) 5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
DEER (F) Segment information (continued)
¥ BHEEH st
Hong Kong Outside Hong Kong Total
ZRIRF ZF-0F ZR-%F “E-RE ZR-RE ZB-NE
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
TERT TET TET TAT TER TET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
PREF W Revenue from external customers 97,788 139,610 93,816 111,411 191,604 251,021
72 EE & Inter-segment revenue 21,238 29,325 23,005 29,146 44,243 58,471
2 Segment revenue 119,026 168,935 116,821 140,557 235,847 309,492
28 (1) RH Segment (loss) profit (36,783) 13,995  (35927)  (10,775)  (72,710) 3,220
REEABMEEBTA  Amount regularly provided to the
TEHMEEESR Group's senior executive
THEBABRMHZ management included in the
8 measurement of segment results:
NE BEKRENE  Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 3,321 2,707 4,009 4,110 7,330 6,817
FREEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 35,423 - 20,508 - 55,931 -
NE BERREZ Impairment losses on property,
HEERE plant and equipment 1,455 - 2,503 1,478 3,958 1,478
FREEREZHERE  Impairment losses on right-of-use
assets 24913 = 18,710 = 43,623 =
BREAABERE Provision for onerous contracts, net - = - 2,563 - 2,563
WA 2HERE  Impairment losses on trade
receivables - - 81 - 81 =

114
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Inter-segment revenue is charged at amounts agreed by

both parties.
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WERDEBEER () 5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
DEBE R (4F) Segment information (continued)
7B ar R A2 R Reconciliation of segment revenue and results
—g-%F —F-h%
2020 2019
THET FTHER
HK$’000 HK$'000
iy 25 Revenue
2 EB 2 AU Total segment revenue 235,847 309,492
2 5B U &5 8 Elimination of inter-segment revenue (44,243) (58,471)
191,604 251,021
E 5 Results
7 EB (E518) & Fl Segment (loss) profit (72,710) 3,220
ROBMAX Unallocated expenses (50,799) (55,946)
Hapl A R bz R E1E Other income and other gains and losses 4,375 7,821
REMELAREZES 2 (Loss) gain on changes in fair value of
(E518) W= investment properties (25,425) 27,790
EIEEERNRZXE Share of results of a joint venture - 131
HEME QR ZWaE Gain on disposal of a subsidiary = 356
B & AN Finance costs (4,824) (510)
FR %5 A B 18 Loss before taxation (149,383) (17,138)
1 EE R Geographic information
TRHEHERAOAEBIREF WSS | R>G)AE The following table sets out information about the
EEREWE  WFE BERKRBURERE geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from
EE((EBEFRBEE]) 2thBUEER - & external customers; and (ii) the Group’s investment
Pz B B I RBER R ZIUBHEE ° 1§ properties, property, plant and equipment, and right-of-use
EFRBDEEZMBNENRIEEE ZBRL assets (“specified non-current assets”). The geographical
B (MEIRENMEURE - BERRKRE) RE location of customers is based on the location at which the

S (HBEREEE) MEE -

goods were delivered. The geographical location of the
specified non-current assets is based on the physical
location of the asset in the case of investment properties
and property, plant and equipment, and the location of

operations in the case of right-of-use assets.
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5. WERDSBER (& 5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
DEER (F) Segment information (continued)
W EER () Geographic information (continued)
HREF W EEFRRDEE
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
i —E-NF —2-FF —2-NF
2020 2019 2020 2019
FHET FET FTHET FTHET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Bk Hong Kong 97,788 139,610 478,367 508,550
B Macau 34,437 48,388 7,168 =
R R A Mainland China 35,784 34,795 169,356 175,158
=01 Taiwan 14,723 19,186 237 712
3N Singapore 8,872 9,042 = 749
93,816 111,411 176,761 176,619
191,604 251,021 655,128 685,169
EFHLTEEFZEH Information about major customers
BE—Z-ERER-E-NF=A=t+—-HL During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, there
FE HBERBE-IRAEFZWHEEAER was no single external customer that contributed 10% or
W BEZ10%3 A £ o more of the Group’s total revenue.
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6. Hfllr A 6. OTHER INCOME

g 32 —E-NEF
2020 2019
THET THET
HK$’000 HK$'000

REVEHESWRALEE Gross rental income from investment
properties 4,928 4,310
RITFERZFIB WA Interest income from bank deposits 33 361
AR 75 & W A Service fee income 1,061 1,013
Hth Others 1,083 434
7,105 6,118

7. HWBIRERER 7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES
g g 32 —E-NEF
2020 2019
TERT THER
HK$’000 HK$'000
REBRILHEEANEEZWE  Gain arising on early termination of lease

contracts 431 -
[ (&18) lam F 5 Exchange (loss) gain, net (2,038) 1,716

HEW%  BERKZHE2ZEE  Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment (1,123) (13)
(2,730) 1,703
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8.

Frigs (%) B 8. INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE
—EC-%F —E-NE
2020 2019
THET THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BB -FBAEBR Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax
REERE Provision for the year - 28
BEFEBERE Over-provision in respect of prior years (30) -
(30) 28
REBIE-F BRI Current tax — Outside Hong Kong
REERE Provision for the year 571 1,745
EFREFIE Deferred tax (3,458) 930
Frigst (%) B Income tax (credit) expense (2,917) 2,703

R-ZE-—N\F=A=+—H BEILLEEB
“E—CFEREK (BT (FE75) RHIER ([F
BIEZR]) » SIAMBREREBRFE o REIE
RRZE-NFE=ZA=+N\BEERELE
WA B ERIR - RI5 R AR RSB =
B &EKEBEERE2,000000% 5T & F
#8128.25% MBI REHH - miE12,000,0007% 5T
#3a R B2 16.5% KB R - TS MR
MEREHENEEBR SFGEEIR6.5%
NE—BREH - EERE > MAHFHFESHR
FIEBREMIRSEHERESMBREMS L
FEXR -BHY  REWMEFEE EEBLEHE
B HK B D BB R E A ERBURRIR16.5%
STEEBRNSEH -
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On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passes The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill is signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
is gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of profits of
a qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of
group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of
16.5%. The Directors consider the amount involved upon
implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements.
Accordingly, Hong Kong Profits Tax for subsidiaries
operating in Hong Kong is calculated at 16.5% of the

estimated assessable profit for both years.

Annual Report 2020 4 £ 4 #




Annual Report 2020 4 ¥4 #

FrEH (Ee) B (&)
REPELERSHE (LEMESH ) RE#E
FREBCEBE RG] - H B At A B AW 1E
FENBER25% °

BRI R TS 32,0002 T (HE R
31,0007 7t) 1B 1K 7300,0008 9 7T (1 E R
291,000 70) M FERBLU AR N F3%ZE9%H
ZEFEHM MESSHEIZEERE12%
W -BE_ZE_ZEFEFR-_Z-—NE=ZA
EST—HLEFE  BMABFETHEIBEBR
GiEiE o FERBIURA K % 588 £600,00008 3
7t (18 & 7582,0007% 7t) » 8 600,000 P9
7 (FE 582,000 7T ) #Y FER B % 7 Al #2 &
ERR12%MT o

REMEEER (BREAERMME) EE2
MIEDZBBEREEE2RTRETE - RE
E-EEF=A=+—-HLEE UREE
RFME2HBRARIZBRARED B H17%
(ZZ2—NF 1 17%) R17% (ZF—NF:
17%) °

MRIFEGAORSR  RARNEEERAEBRF
BRitZHIELEE—_SELF+_A=+—
B2 BEE ZmFIEE 25 RIR10%B EHH
B c ARAEERBENELEIHE BT
MRLHBAREERZERSE @ HeTE LA
BB A2 SRR ERS%  c EERE -
AEBESEARERDIIRZERR > FTAE
MOIRZEREBEFENS 2BIBRRDIELS
HEBETEBT(ZF—N1F :5026,000E7T) °

Ao A S 25 A Mk

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-ZT-ZTF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE (continued)

Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT law, the tax rate
of the Mainland China subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Macau Complementary Tax is levied at progressive rates
ranging from 3% to 9% on the taxable income above
MOP32,000 (equivalent to HK$31,000) but below
MOP300,000 (equivalent to HK$291,000), and thereafter at
a fixed rate of 12%. For the years ended 31 March 2020
and 2019, a special complementary tax incentive was
provided to the effect that the tax free income threshold
was MOP600,000 (equivalent to HK$582,000) with profit
above MOP600,000 (equivalent to HK$582,000) being

taxed at a fixed rate of 12%.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions including Taiwan and
Singapore is calculated at the rate prevailing in the relevant
jurisdictions. During the year ended 31 March 2020, the
applicable tax rates for subsidiaries domiciled in Taiwan
and Singapore are 17% (2019: 17%) and 17% (2019: 17%)

respectively.

The Group is subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10%
(unless reduced by treaty) on distribution of profits
generated after 31 December 2007 from the Group’s
foreign-invested enterprises in the Mainland China. As all
of the Group’s foreign-invested enterprises are directly and
wholly owned by Hong Kong incorporated subsidiaries, a
reduced rate of 5% is applicable in the calculation of this
withholding tax. Deferred tax liabilities of HK$nil (2019:
HK$5,026,000) have not been recognised in respect of the
tax that would be payable on the distribution of these
retained profits since, in the opinion of the Directors, these
earnings are not intended to be distributed in the

foreseeable future.
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8. FiEH (E%)RMx (&)

FRAEH (BER)BAXTEFSERREM
PHWSERABENRBEABEEROT :

INCOME TAX (CREDIT) EXPENSE (continued)

The income tax (credit) expense for the year can be
reconciled to the loss before taxation per the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

as follows:

= —T-NF
2020 2019
FTHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BB AT E 1 Loss before taxation (149,383) (17,138)
BREHBERBRLRERS Notional tax at tax rates applicable to
BENEARE losses in the tax jurisdictions concerned
AEZEENE (25,661) (3,264)
AR 2B E Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 1,210 2,716
BAGFHRBA 2R E Tax effect of non-taxable income (96) (6,872)
AERFTEHREE2BEEE  Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 17,968 10,957
FREBHHMEHERZ Tax effect of tax losses utilised
Bz during the year (381) (289)
AEATNRERGUZEZ Tax effect of deductible temporary differences
nBEE not recognised 4,172 -
BEFEHBARE Overprovision in respect of prior years (30) -
Hit Others 99) (545)
(2,917) 2,703
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HE-ZT-ZTF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

FREE 9. LOSS FOR THE YEAR
FRAFEBEEHER (FFA) THRE : Loss for the year is arrived at after charging (crediting):
—E-%F —E-NEF
2020 2019
THERT THET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT A Staff costs
B < (HzE10) Directors’ remuneration (note 10) 8,409 9,052
Hith & TR A Other staff costs
Fe - FREMER Salaries, wages and other benefits 63,954 73,727
REGFR AR BIER Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan 4,368 5,040
ETHABER Total staff costs 76,731 87,819
ZEENEN & Auditors’ remuneration 1,300 1,300
M BRERRZENE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 16,865 19,377
FRAREERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 58,275 -
M BERRZEZHERIE  Impairment losses on property, plant and
GIADHBEEURTHE equipment (included in distribution and
HtEEHRA) selling and administrative and other
operating expenses) 7,525 1,478
FREEEZRERSE Impairment loss on right-of-use assets
GFTAZHEREEUR (included in distribution and selling and
THREMKERXZA) administrative and other
operating expenses) 43,623 =
FEWBR R 2 BB E5 18 Impairment losses on trade receivables 81 -
BIELCEHEAN2BIEFEE  Provision for onerous operating lease
GtADEREERYTRA) contracts, net (included in distribution and
selling expenses) - 2,563
T REEY 2EEHEERM  Operating lease charges in respect of land
and buildings
—REAETR — minimum lease payments = 105,957
- E5HE — contingent rentals _ 4,747
REMFZHEWAREE Rentals income from investment properties
% H1260,0007% 7T less direct outgoings of HK$260,000
(ZE—H%E : 266,000/ T) (2019: HK$266,000) (4,668) (4,044)
AR/ 2FERAR (MR Cost of inventories recognised as an expense
13 [B] #UR 17 &.244,00078 7T (net of reversal of write-down of inventories
(ZZ— N 8,133,000 ) of HK$244,000 (2019: HK$8,133,000)) 44,571 45,793
RITEERR Interests on bank borrowings 728 510
HEBEBEZFE Interests on lease liabilities 4,096 =

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ B B 4 4 4 [t 2 #]
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HE-_T-TF=A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

9, FREEE) 9. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (continued)
BRARBAI 2 FERABIEE IHARITEM Cost of inventories recognised as an expense includes
B 213,600,000 L (=& — N F : HK$13,600,000 (2019: HK$18,434,000) relating to staff
18,434,000/ 7T)  BEARBEL A S ZER costs and depreciation, which amount is also included in
XRAMEREIIRE 2 S BRESD - the respective total amounts disclosed separately in this

note for each of these expenses.

10. BEERISFHRAEHS 10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS
AAFREE (BREIETHAR) 2ERR The emoluments paid or payable to each of the director of
EAMESEIMT : the Company, including the chief executive, are as follows:

M-
BER
BENEAN R
Salaries, FEIER
allowances BiEEA Retirement
#82&  and benefits Discretionary scheme Mt
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
TET TR TR TR TRz
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

BEZZ=Z5=H For the year ended
=+-ALFE 31 March 2020

HITEZE Executive directors
RAA(TRAELD  Chan Yum Kit (“Mr. Chan”) - 5,499 - 18 5,517
#%IE (M &L])  Tsui How Kiu, Shirley

(“Ms. Tsui”) - 3,661 - 18 3,679
BREE Chan Sze Chun = 773 = 18 791

BUHHTEZE  Independent non-executive

directors
REE Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 90 - _ _ 90
REHE Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 90 - - _ 90
R Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 90 - - _ 90

270 9,933 - 54 10,257
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-ZT-ZTF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

10. EERFETHAEMNE (& 10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS
(continued)
-
EHR
BENEA RAK
Salaries, BTN
allowances BERA Retirement
#%  and benefits  Discretionary scheme st
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
TER TET TET TET TER
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000

BZ-Z—NE=H For the year ended
=t-HLEFE 37 March 2019

HITEE Executive directors

REE Mr. Chan - 5,883 - 18 5,901

F37dun Ms. Tsui - 3,958 - 18 3,976

RESK Chan Sze Chun = 807 = 18 825

BUFHTEZE  Independent non-executive

directors

REE Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 90 = = = 90

REH Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 90 - - - 90

MR Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 90 - - - 90
270 10,648 - 54 10,972

e RURBYEINESEOESREHZEE Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind include an

T RESEY 2 HEHEE1,848,0008 T (== amount of HK$1,848,000 (2019: HK$1,920,000) which

—NE : 1,920,000 T) © represents the market rental value of own land and

buildings provided to Directors.
RTESZCMBRANKBEREB2XER The discretionary bonuses to the Directors are determined
BE ItRESSHE- by reference to the Group’s performance and approved by
the board of directors.

REETABEADBDZEEZTHAL » KR LM Mr. Chan is also the chief executive of the Company and

I EC e BEBREATETHASRMS his emoluments disclosed above include those for services

R 2 B & o rendered by him as the chief executive officer.

Annual Report 2020 £ 47 # Moiselle International Holdings Limited % &¥ B4 Bx £ [ # B 2 7] 123




124

Aok 7 S 25 R M i
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HE-_T-TF=A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

10. EERFIETBRAEME (&)

11.

EXRRBTESHEFERREREEARLF
RASEEEBHAREERB 2ME

EXFRRBIFRITES cMEFRREHE
ESRERBZHME -

RREFER  AEEHEIFMESFESHE
BIBEHREMBAEBRAMNER 2 RSB
BEE TR BITESRLE  RLLTRK
BEELECHERSZETHES  €EI AR
211,000/ (ZE—HF : T#Ex) » 115,000
BT (ZZE—NF : Z#t) k38,0008 T (=
Z-NEFE TR EMEFER LEB
JHITESRETMABMS -

TEEEMEAL
AuGEEHEALH WU (ZE-AF W
) EEZHECRME10FEIE - Hif=

N(ZE—NEF =) AT ZHESHEBENT :

10. DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS

11.

(continued)
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services in connection with the management of the

affairs of the Company and the Group.

The emoluments of the independent non-executive

directors shown above were for their services as Directors.

During both years, no emoluments was paid by the Group
to the Directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. During the
year, the executive directors, Mr. Chan, Ms. Tsui and
Mr. Chan Sze Chun have waived certain of their
emoluments amounted to HK$211,000 (2019: HK$nil),
HK$115,000 (2019: HK$nil) and HK$38,000 (2019:
HK$nil) respectively. None of the independent
non-executive directors has waived any emoluments in

both years.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two
(2019: two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 10. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of

the other three (2019: three) individuals are as follows:

—F-FF —E-NF

2020 2019

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

e RMRHEMEYER Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind 4,737 5,641
By 15 T8 4L Discretionary bonuses 200 410
RNET B Retirement scheme contributions 146 42
5,083 6,093
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-ZT-ZTF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

11. AZE=EME AL (&) 11.

ZENU(ZE—NF =) MEesES ALt 2
EETHSEER :

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)
The emoluments of the three (2019: three) individuals with

the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

A
Number of individuals
—F-FF —E-NF
2020 2019
1,000,001 7t — 1,500,000 7t HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1 1
1,500,001 7t —2,000,00058 7t HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 2 =
2,000,001 7t —2,500,000/ 57t HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 - 2
12. RE 12. DIVIDENDS
—F-%F =F-NF
2020 2019
FE T FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
KEERE Dividends during the year:
ENARERE Final dividends paid:

R-E-AERBRTEM Nil cents per share in respect of 2019
(ZE—NE BZE-N\F (2019: HK4 cents per share in respect of

BER4EN) 2018)

- 11,517

- 11,517

RBE-Z-ZTER-ZF-NF=A=+—H
LEE RARTFRIKEREFEBRRKER -
BE-Z-hE=A=1+—HLFEHH - &
AFABEERERNFEZE=Z—N\F=A=1+—
HEFEZARBRKRESRKR4EWL11,517,000
B RIEPHRBLBOARAERRKRR
KA SR BRI AR 2 ©

No dividend was proposed for ordinary shareholders of the
Company during the years ended 31 March 2020 and
2019. Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2018 of
HK4 cents per share approximately to HK$11,517,000 was
declared and paid by the Company during the year ended
31 March 2019. No dividend was paid or proposed for
ordinary shareholders of the Company subsequent to the

end of the reporting period.
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13. 8K EE 13. LOSS PER SHARE
ARNREEAEBIEEREREENREBEUTH The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to
BEE the owners of the Company is based on the following data:
e Loss

—E-%F ZE-hF
2020 2019
THET THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
AU ESREREEZ Loss for the year for the purposes of
FREE basic loss per share (146,694) (19,717)
RGEE Number of shares
= —E-NF
2020 2019
TR TR
000 ‘000
AUGTEBRERESEZ Weighted average number of ordinary shares
TR RN for the purpose of basic loss per share 287,930 287,930
HARAD B RMEFEEL SBEMAESEED 2 Diluted loss per share is not presented as the Company
TERG  BULEZIEGREEES - does not have any dilutive potential ordinary share for both
years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
THE=HA=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

PROPERTIES
B B
KB BER
R REBSIR BABERE
KfEaRAZ kAE
THREEN Furniture,
Land and fixtures, nE BE
huildings computer RN
held for I##E  and office BEN Sub-total
own Use REH  equipment B of property. RENZ
carried at Plantand ~ and motor Leasehold plantand  Investment st
fairvalue  machinery vehicles  improvements  equipment properties Total
T Thx TEx TR T TEn ThR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
AAEME: Cost or valuation:
RZE-NEMA-R At 1 April 2018 439,244 4199 22,487 39,765 505,695 196,628 702,323
ERRE Exchange adjustments (3,940 277) (438) (548) (5,203) - (5,203)
ke Additions - 72 528 11,281 11,881 - 11,881
HE/ M Disposals/write-off - (160) (249) (8,247) (8,655) (41,69) (50,348
HIBREENERZRENE  Tranfer from land and buildings to investment
properties (100,000) = = = (100,000) 100,000 =
BB Surplus on revaluation 66,788 = = = 66,788 = 66,788
B HEEHTERER Less: Elimination of accumulated depreciation
and revaluation (11,380) - - - (11,380) - (11,380)
RE&ZEERARERM Increase in fair value recognised in
profit or loss - - - - - 27,790 27,790
RZE-NE=fA=1-H At 31 March 2019 390,712 3,634 22,329 42,251 459,126 282,725 741,851
ERAEAEHREEE165E  Adjustment upon application of HKFRS 16
EELE) (note 2) - - - (439) (439) - (439)
RZE-NEBA-A At1 April 2019 390,712 3,634 22,329 41,812 458,687 282,725 741412
EiaE Exchange adjustments (26) (105) (191) (101) (423) 25 (398)
KE Additions - 3 261 7,100 7,364 - 7,364
HE/ M Disposals/write-off = (524) 42) (13,227) (13,793) - (13,799)
MIMRBENERZRENE  Transfer from land and buildings to investment
properties (2,273) - - - (2,273) 2,273 -
BiEM Deficit on revaluation (9,952) = = = (9,952) = (9,952)
B HEZRTERES Less: Elimination of accumulated depreciation
and revaluation (9,793) = = = (9,793) - (9,793)
RBEZERADAEHY Decrease in fair value recognised in
profit or loss - - - - - (25,425) (25,425)
W-2-2£=p=1-A At31 March 2020 368,668 3,20 2,357 35,584 429,817 259598 689415
fi&: Representing:
A Cost - 3,208 22,357 35,584 61,149 - 61,149
fi Valuation 368,668 . . S 36B668 259598 628,266
368,668 3,208 22,357 35,584 429,817 259,598 689,415
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HE-_T-ZTF=A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

14. ¥ BERRBUARRENE (&

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)

B B
B EER
NRRESIR HAZEE
KEBRZ kRE
1HREEN Furniture,
Land and fixtures, VESYT
huildings computer RRE M
held for I#EE  and office HEN% Sub-total
own use R#H  equipment B of property. RENE
carried at Plantand ~ and motor Leasehold plantand  Investment #st
fair value ~ machinery vehicles  improvements  equipment properties Total
T Tin T T Tin TEx TEn
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000
HERHE: Depreciation and impairment:
RZE-NEmA-A At 1 April 2018 = 3,463 19,123 33,919 56,505 - 56,505
Ej@Z Exchange adjustments - (1) (312) (133) (656) - (656)
REEHE Charge for the year 11,380 56 1,024 6917 19377 - 19377
REEZEERHERS Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
(Hrzt1s) (note 15) - - - 1,478 1478 - 1478
HE /i Disposalshwrite-off - (160) (235) (8,247) (8,642) - (64
EffRHE Elimination on revaluation (11,380) - = = (11,380) = (11,380)
RZZ-NEZA=1-A At 31 March 2019 - 3,148 19,600 33,934 56,682 - 56,682
ERERMEAERZ16%%  Adjustment upon application of HKFRS 16
B2 (frsE2) (note 2) - - - (80) (80) - (80)
RZE-7ERA-A AT April 2019 - 3,148 19,600 33,854 56,602 - 56,602
EiRE Exchange adjustments - (89) (166) (194) (449) - (449)
REERE Charge for the year 9,793 51 811 6,210 16,865 - 16,865
RERZEERHERS Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss
(RizE15) (note 15) - 621 2,144 4,760 750 = 7,50
HE /W Disposals/write-off = (523) (32) (12,105) (12,660) - (12,660)
EfEHH Elimination on revaluation (9,793) = = = (9,793) = (9,793)
R-E-ZE5=A=1-H At 31 March 2020 - 3,208 22,357 32,525 58,090 - 58,090
REFE: Net book value:
RZE-Z2F=A=+-H At 31 March 2020 368,668 - - 3,059 3,21 259,598 631,325
RZZ-AF=R=1-8 At31 March 2019 390,712 686 2729 8317 402,444 282725 685,169
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M- BERRBUARRENE (F)

RZE-_ZE=A=1+—-—RHB HKEES
52,100,0005% jt (=& — fL % : 30,300,000
) 2T REEYERBTEEERKF (R
MfzE23) o

R-ZZE_ZTF - {E{E2,273,0008 T (=& —

£ : 100,000,000 7T) zii&&@%%ﬂm%
EHBRNEBRERZERENE  YREFEH
TER EMYERBISERER REERE
RERRE -

E-Z-2F  BRBEBRBEBENEBRRE
EZEERMAMBINETHREEEEN(ZF
—NE  EEBIRIIER) RSEE  BEREE
E BERZETEDHE Bt EFE
FZHEEYE BERZFHEZITHRESE  m
ZEEECRABEEHMREAZEHEREZAIRE£EE
2,148,000 5T (ZZF— 1LF : 746,000 T) °
WEE 7,525,000 T (=& — N &F:

1,478,000/ T) O RERER - JRE£FE
At DREZEEEMB 2R e ELEENFER

EERBEBEEI35%(ZZE—I%E 13.5%) M
fEH ©

AEBYEZ DI REFE
NRZB-_TER_ZT-—HAE=A=+—H K

SEMEZAABETIREERNEE I EEEE 2
REREXYEMGEMNTRAUBMITERATF
REB-EER-E-_NAF=ZA=T—RH#ET
ZEEREEMEGE - REERBEMEND R
BEE AEENSRITHREEEC EAEM
MEENAERTTRAREFTENE AR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#HE—

14.

T-TF=RA=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)

At 31 March 2020, land and buildings with carrying
amounts of HK$52,100,000 (2019: HK$30,300,000) were
pledged against bank borrowings (see note 23).

In 2020, land and buildings to the value of HK$2,273,000
(2019: HK$100,000,000) was transferred to investment
properties upon a change in use of the properties as
evidenced by the end of owner occupation and the said
properties became held for capital appreciation and/or

rental purposes.

In 2020, certain cash-generating units, as identified based
on each retail store, of the Hong Kong operation and
Outside Hong Kong operation (2019: Outside Hong Kong
operation) recorded losses which indicate the relevant
property, plant and equipment might have been impaired.
As a result, the Directors reviewed the recoverable amount
of the relevant property, plant and equipment and the
carrying amount of such assets was written down to their
recoverable amount of HK$2,148,000 (2019: HK$746,000).
An impairment loss of HK$7,525,000 (2019:
HK$1,478,000) was recognised in profit or loss. The
estimates of recoverable amount were based on value in
use of the cash-generating units to which these assets
belong at a discount rate of 13.5% (2019: 13.5%).

Fair value measurement of the Group’s properties

The fair value of the Group’s properties as at 31 March
2020 and 2019 were arrived at on the basis of valuation
carried out as at 31 March 2020 and 2019 by Centaline
Surveyors Limited, independent firm of qualified
professional property valuers not connected with the
Group. In determining the fair value of the relevant
properties, the Group’s senior executive management has
discussion with the valuer on the appropriate valuation

techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.
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14. ¥ - BERBEURKREWE (&) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)

KEBYE A RETE (F) Fair value measurement of the Group’s properties

(continued)

RBERR - AEENEREAAABERN
EXFHBREIWT :

Details of the Group’s properties and information about the

fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period are

as follows:

R=—ZF=-%F
=ZA=+—-H
ZARE
Fair value
EF=R as at 31
Level 3 March 2020
FTHERT FTEx
HK$’000 HK$’000
EEMALETE Recurring fair value measurement
REM=E Investment properties:
& Hong Kong 154,709 154,709
AR B A i Mainland China 104,889 104,889
BFEBRZLREEY Land and buildings held for own use:
BiE Hong Kong 310,889 310,889
i Ry b Mainland China 57,779 57,779
RZE-I%F
=B=+—8H
ZARE
Fair value
E=8 as at 31
Level 3 March 2019
FHER FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEMALETE Recurring fair value measurement
REME Investment properties:
O Hong Kong 171,805 171,805
AR B A Mainland China 110,920 110,920
BFEERZLHRESEY : Land and buildings held for own use:
& Hong Kong 327,495 327,495
FR R A b Mainland China 63,217 63,217
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14. M%¥ BERREARREW (B)
FEEYEZDABERE (F)

BE-Z-ZF=A=+t—HLFE  REBE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-ZT-ZTF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value measurement of the Group’s properties

(continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2020, there were no

ZANBAREL (Z2-F : #) - transfers into or out of Level 3 (2019: nil).

EXFTEER

BAHE

HER % Significant
Valuation unobservable EE
techniques inputs Range
REBRZBRENR-IX ERLEL BEENEE -32.7% E 11.1%
Investment properties in Hong Kong Direct comparison £ Z & E (%) -32.7% to 11.1%
- Industrial approach  Premium (discount) (ZE-h&E:
on quality of the -8.3%%£8.7%)
buildings (2019: -8.3% to 8.7%)
REBZRENE-IX WAERLE BARE 3.0%
Investment properties in Hong Kong Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate (ZE—NE 3.0%)
— Industrial approach (2019: 3.0%)
RERZBRENF-HX ERE®E RERNEE -37.9%Z48.4%
Investment properties in Hong Kong Direct comparison e zimE (rE) -37.9% to 48.4%
- Commercial approach  Premium (discount) (ZE-h&E:
on quality of the -10.4%Z%2.1%)
buildings  (2019: -10.4% to 2.1%)
REBZBRENR-HX LON-CN 3 e 2.5%%£4.0%
Investment properties in Hong Kong Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate 2.5% to 4.0%
— Commercial approach (ZBE-hE&E:
2.5%%4.0%)
(2019: 2.5% to 4.0%)
RPEAEzRENE-TX WAERE BRR 4.0%
Investment properties in the Mainland China Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate (ZE—-NF : 4.0%)
- Industrial approach (2019: 4.0%)
RPEARBZRENE-BHE LON-EN|473 BAE 6.4%
Investment properties in the Mainland China Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate (ZB-hE : 6.4%)
- Commercial approach (2019: 6.4%)
RPEABZRENE -2 WAERE Rz 4.0%
Investment properties in the Mainland China Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate (ZE—NE : 4.0%)
- Residential approach (2019: 4.0%)
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HE-_T-TF=A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

14. M%  BERREARREW (&)
FEEYEZDABRE (F)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value measurement of the Group’s properties

(continued)

EXFUEER

BAHE

HER* Significant
Valuation unobservable EE
techniques inputs Range
REBSFERZIBREEN-TX EREBE HEENEE -32.7%%10.2%
Land and buildings held for own use in Hong Kong Direct comparison e 2R fE (7:%) -32.7% t0 10.2%
- Industrial approach  Premium (discount) (ZE-N%F:
on quality of the -24.9%%5.1%)
buildings ~ (2019: -24.9% to 5.1%)
REBREERRZLHREEY-F%E BEEEBE REFNEE -1.0%Z27.2%
Land and buildings held for own use in Hong Kong Direct comparison Rz BB (rE) -1.0% to 27.2%
- Residential approach  Premium (discount) (ZE-N%F:
on quality of the -1.8%Z11.7%)
buildings  (2019: -1.8% to 11.7%)
ReBEREEEARz L HRBEY -BX =349 REEYLE -13.2%%-1.0%
Land and buildings held for own use in the Mainland China Direct comparison iz iR B (I E) -13.2% to -1.0%
— Commercial approach  Premium (discount) (ZE-h&F:
on quality of the -7.9%%4.5%)
buildings ~ (2019: -7.9% to 4.5%)
REBEREFEERAZ I REEN—1E BEELBE HEENEE -5.0%%28.8%
Land and buildings held for own use in the Mainland China Direct comparison  fEH 2 & A (373%) -5.0% to 8.8%
- Residential approach  Premium (discount) (ZB-NF:

Moiselle International Holdings Limited % i B9 B 4 1 & [ 4 w]

on quality of the
buildings

-5.0%25.1%)
(2019: -5.0% to 5.1%)
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14. ¥ BERRBUARREWE (A)

TEBEWEZAARETE(F)

UREBRFEAMSEER 2L REEY
ZRAREDZENERETFLLBRNEER
B EZARmSEEEEERE -

REMEZAARBIONZZHBHETFLR
MEEERE  RARMSEEREE o)A
EHEREE 2 HEREEESRARBER
L EE -

HELBUEMER ORERITE - NEEEE
METHEENLER - BEMEZES  EE
TERE BERLAEBEHELHA -

WABERCEFERANERNCRERRZEN
REmSEHSER HRARUAREERVEM
EHAZE - AAEFEETSHASEERERE
BE BEXACRHEERR-

ENBEFERZ I REEYFMEE ZEMHE
89,952,000 T (ZE— N F B AL
66,788,000/8 70) REMEHEUERER o i £
Mo HEE Az Tt REBEYIRE ERARRR
AENE R=Z-ZTF=A=+—HZK
HAEAAH73,017,0008 T (=& — L F :
75,235,000/& ) °

BLT(ZE—NF  REVELABEHME
A2 E27,790,000/8 T8) ERIERTER °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-ZT-ZTF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT

PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s properties
(continued)

The fair value of land and buildings held for own use
located in Hong Kong and the Mainland China is
determined on an open market value basis, by making
reference to the comparable sales evidence in the relevant
locality.

The fair value of investment properties is determined (i) on
an open market value basis, by making reference to the
comparable sales evidence in the relevant locality; or (ii) by
capitalising the current rent derived from the existing
tenancies with the provision for any revisionary income
potential.

The premium or discount used in direct comparison
approach is specific to the building compared to the recent
sales. Higher premium for higher quality buildings will
result in a higher fair value measurement.

The capitalisation rate used in income capitalisation
approach has been adjusted for the expected market rental
growth, occupancy rate and quality and location of the
building. The fair value measurement is positively
correlated to the market rental value and negatively

correlated to the capitalisation rate.

Revaluation loss of HK$9,952,000 (2019: revaluation
surplus of HK$66,788,000) arising from revaluation of land
and buildings held for own use is recognised in other
comprehensive income. Had the above land and buildings
held for own use been carried at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation, the carrying amounts would
have been HK$73,017,000 (2019: HK$75,235,000) at 31
March 2020.

The loss arising from changes in fair value of investment
properties of HK$25,425,000 (2019: gain arising from
changes in fair value of investment properties of
HK$27,790,000) is recognised in profit or loss.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ B B 4 4 4 [t 2 #]
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15. EARSESE 15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
HEWE HEWE
—-ZEE —BAE
Leased Leased
properties — properties — Agt
retail shop office Total
THET THET THET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AR : Cost:
R-ZE—NEMA—H At 1 April 2019 154,533 4,842 159,375
XA Exchange adjustment (1,507) (117) (1,624)
BE Additions 36,210 153 36,363
HEGRRIEET Modification of lease term (7,326) (16) (7,342)
RERLEESY Early termination of lease
contracts (24,548) - (24,548)
R-Z2-2F
=A=+-8” At 31 March 2020 157,362 4,862 162,224
MERRBE: Depreciation and impairment:
RZZE—NFMA—H At 1 April 2019 53,697 752 54,449
P 5 R Exchange adjustment (812) (40) (852)
RKEERE Charge for the year 55,848 2,427 58,275
REZCHRABEEE Impairment losses recognised
in profit or loss 42,112 1,511 43,623
REALEEEY Early termination of lease
contracts (17,074) - (17,074)
R-ZE-2HF
=BA=+—H At 31 March 2020 133,771 4,650 138,421
REDFE Net book value:
R-ZZBZEF
=A=+—8 At 31 March 2020 23,591 212 23,803
R-ZB-NFDMA—H At 1 April 2019 100,836 4,090 104,926
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-ZT-ZTF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

HEWE
Leased
properties
THET
HK$’000
BE-Z-_ZF=-AZ+—-HLEFE For the year ended 31 March 2020
HERNKERAE BN ERELEL Expense relating to short-term leases and other leases
Flesh BERETTI2E R AERZ with lease terms end within 12 months of the date of
EHEEREMESHEREREL initial application of HKFRS 16 22,205
NitBHEEERABIFEZ Variable lease payments not included in the
A EE T measurement of lease liabilities 12,765
HEvHeREAR Total cash outflow for leases (87,663)

Annual Report 2020 4 ¥4 #

REEFE  AEERAXKLERAAREX
B ZEF BELAEERBLAE-HES
WAL —FZ2=FWEEAY - BHIIZER
EEHE > UEEEERENERRREE - R
EEEBRE T THER B BRE - RE
BEASHERLBESHATHT ZHIR -

ZEFHESAEREEHERERBES IS
HEREME REREENE TEOLERR
HHRBEENKEFEREHETE - 84D
A2 N RIRREE ERIEK - FRIRRTIER
EEEERTEHESRE RN FERL - &
BRHME 2 ZEESERA #E2-"F=-F%
FZA=+—-HLEE BN ELEBELA
ARZEBEERAASHEEREESHNT !

For both years, the Group leases factory buildings, retail
shops, department store counters and offices for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term
of 1 to 3 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which

the contract is enforceable.

Leases of retail shops are either with only fixed lease
payments or contain variable lease payments that are based
on certain percentage of sales and minimum annual lease
payments that are fixed over the lease term. Some variable
payment terms include cap clauses. The payment terms are
common in retail shops in Hong Kong, Macau, the
Mainland China, Taiwan and Singapore where the Group
operates. The amount of fixed and variable lease payments
paid/payable to relevant lessors for the year ended 31
March 2020:

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ B B 4 4 4 [t 2 #]
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15. FHEEE (i)

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

ERANEA CE-SEA NRAEE
Fixed Variable Total
payments payments payments
FER FTER FER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

WERASEHENSHZEEE  Retail shops without variable
lease payments 67,363 - 67,363

REUEMAENRZEEE  Retail shops with variable

lease payments 5,346 12,765 18,111
72,709 12,765 85,474

ERATENREANBEYBELEDHEER
ENZREEMEENEERRTSRS - AHK
REBFAREEHAMETEEHERNLL OB
mERE -

WAE TG
HRZZE-—NFTH¥EEBRERBENLES
BRAZZE-ZFE-—ZEBFH20198MRE
SR AKEEEEERAFERERS 1Y
HENEUARDE  BMERZEZTIKRESHE
TR E RS ©

ERSELBENARESBEDREFEAEES
BEmMEE T EERARSRETER > BEE
HEEAEEEEEME  RESRESELS
NFEHEERRNMERE IR F
A=+ —BHBRBIAIBEIREI13. 5% EE o
FAEENES —EXEBRRAEEEANE
HEERESEAENBERBUREEREY
MSERERNTERMEE -

Moiselle International Holdings Limited % i B9 B 4 1 & [ 4 w]

The overall financial effect of using variable payment terms
is that higher rental costs are incurred by retail shops with
higher sales. Variable rent expenses are expected to
continue to represent a similar proportion of retail shops

sales in future years.

Impairment assessment

Due to protracted social events in Hong Kong in the second
half of 2019 and the outbreak of Covid-19 in the first
quarter of 2020, the management of the Group concluded
there was indication for impairment and conducted
impairment assessment on recoverable amounts of leased

properties and property, plant and equipment.

The recoverable amount of each cash-generating units has
been determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by the management of the Group
covering the remaining lease terms of each cash-generating
units with a pre-tax discount rate of 13.5% as at 31 March
2020. Another key assumption for the value in use
calculated is the budgeted gross margin, which is
determined based on each cash-generating unit’s past
performance and management expectations for the market

development.
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BREFGER  AEEEEERARREEL
BWAKESBEERAELREE - REAEHR
TE CREEMEURYE BERSREZ
IREED BRI ES3,623,0008 TR
7,525,000 5t (Z & — L5F : 1,478,000/
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HEZZ-_TF=FA=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)
Based on the result of the assessment, management of the
Group determined that the recoverable amount of each
cash-generating unit is lower than the carrying amount.
Based on the value in use calculation, an impairment of
HK$43,623,000 and HK$7,525,000, respectively, has been

JL) ° recognised against the carrying amounts of leased
properties and property, plant and equipment (2019:
HK$1,478,000).
16. ENEE 16. DEPOSITS PAID
—ECEBF —E-nEF
2020 2019
FHET FHER
HK$’000 HK$'000
HeRHEMERS Rental and other deposits 30,630 39,307
WBRENEZENRE Deposit paid for acquisition of
(B &E) investment properties (Note) 11,691 12,094
42,321 51,401
W HEeREMERS (GEA Less: Rental and other deposits
FE W BR & &Eﬂﬁ]‘glﬁln (included in trade and other
(FFzE18) A receivables (note 18)) (17,607) (23,626)
24,714 27,775

M : HE-_ZT— AW F=A=+—HLFEH
B e AR¥10,522,0007T (FHE R A
12,094,000 7t) B A{EX (F U BB L A
Bl 2 B R BB 22 HNE - RIB
BV EBRERR L 2R 0 BIEWEER
—E_ZFTA=THZARAFAEE -

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2019, a deposit of
RMB10,522,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$12,094,000) was paid as full consideration for
acquisition of a unit in a commercial building situated in
the Mainland China. According to the agreement entered
with property developer, the decorated properties would be
delivered to the Group before 30 October 2020.
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17. 78 17. INVENTORIES
“E-EF  CE-NE
2020 2019
THET THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
R Raw materials 1,519 1,741
EEM Work in progress 328 499
SRR Finished goods 53,015 57,255
54,862 59,495
EECHMAEEFER S _ZEF=H4 The Directors have assessed the net realisable values and
=t+—-HBzZU2BRFERRR  HHREFEM condition of the Group’s inventories as at 31 March 2020
244,000 T (== — L& 8,133,000 and have reversed write-down of inventories of
T) o HK$244,000 (2019: HK$8,133,000).
18. FEURBR 7 2 H 1ib FE U =X 18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
“E-EF  -E-NE
2020 2019
THET THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE W BR X Trade receivables 6,527 9,262
W EEEBREE Less: Allowance for credit losses (81) =
6,446 9,262
HeRkHEMZEES - RE Rental and other deposits - current 17,607 23,626
FEARIE Prepayment 1,991 1,830
H 1t FE UL X Other receivables 1,161 839
27,205 35,557
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18. AR R H 1t WK ()
RI|ERR  REZAPFELNREBERE
ZBEWIRARRBE DT WT ¢

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade receivables, based on invoice date and net of loss

allowance, is as follows:

Annual Report 2020 4 ¥4 #

—E-F%F —F-NF

2020 2019

THERT FER

HK$’000 HK$’000

308 Within 30 days 4,613 7,618
318 %90H 31 to 90 days 920 1,573
91TH=180H 91 to 180 days 12 -
HBiB180H Over 180 days 901 71
6,446 9,262

FEWER R R B BR300 H BIM - A&
EEERERZE - SHBERME -

F 1 649,000/ 7T) ZFEWERT - BERIERIR
ESHHEEE - RNEEAESHRE T 0 903,000/
T (ZE—N%F : 71,0005 7T) BBEI0 B = A
Lt EHRESRAEZEHFIRLRE
FERRREERCBERY  WEBERNR
ANZHWE  FRWEFIRBED - AEH
WERZSEARFTEEMERR -

ERAEWRR R EabEU R 2R E AR5 HE
PAKIEE3T ©

Trade receivables are due within 30 to 90 days from the
invoice date. Further details on the Group’s credit policy

are set out in note 31.

As at 31 March 2020, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$1,293,000 (2019: HK$649,000) which are
past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due
balances, HK$903,000 (2019: HK$71,000) has been past
due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default as
the Directors are of the opinion that the balances are still
considered fully recoverable due to long-term/on-going
relationship and good repayment record from these
counterparties. The Group does not hold any collateral over

these balances.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other

receivables are set out in note 31.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% ¥ B B 4 4 4 [t 2 #]
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19. BITEBEHRS 19. BANK BALANCES AND CASH
—B-%F —F-NF
2020 2019
THET THERT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBER=EAR Deposits with banks within three
DEZRITER months to maturity when placed 3,000 =
BITERREREE Cash at bank and in hand 28,829 30,720
RES TR K ZBIT Bank balances and cash in the
EHRESURRGSE consolidated statement of financial
RenExkzEHER position and cash and cash
RELEY equivalents in the consolidated
statement of cash flows 31,829 30,720
BRARITER ZBEN L BHNAMET - Details of impairment assessment of bank balances are set
out in note 31.
20. FE{TBEK B LAt FE 14 2% 20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
ZB-EF —E-hEF
2020 2019
THERT FTHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEATBR X Trade payables 8,013 5,070
[E1 ¢ Deposit received 2,935 3,227
EitEA Accrued charges 26,026 24,186
e I IR IR R TR IR Amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder 1,800 1,800
HAu TR Other payables 4,180 4,924
42,954 39,207
AR R ESEEEIEE - 8 R EE The amount due to a non-controlling shareholder is
TEZEFRER o unsecured, interest free and has no fixed repayment terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-ZT-ZTF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of

DA ¢ trade payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows:
et 33 “E-NF
2020 2019
THET THER
HK$’000 HK$'000
308 & Within 30 days 4,569 1,559
31B£90H 31 to 90 days 385 205
#1890 H Over 90 days 3,059 3,306
8,013 5,070
21. HE&E 21. LEASE LIABILITIES
—E-%F
2020
THET
HK$’000
EREEERE: Lease liabilities payable:
—FR Within one year 61,593
BBE—FETEBWE Within a period of more than one year but not more
than two years 25,517
BEWMEETEBESE Within a period of more than two years but not more
than five years 1,550
88,660
B ORBEEMRER2{EA Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months
REMNZERE shown under current liabilities (61,593)
ERBEEMTNI2ERE Amount due for settlement after 12 months shown
BNzEH under non-current liabilities 27,067
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22, BEFFEHR (BE)RE 22. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) LIABILITIES
RAEFEEEAEVHEMRRRERZIELFREH The components of deferred tax (assets) liabilities
(BEE)EBZARRIREBEZBNT : recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

position and the movements during the year are as follows:
RESRER
fEHE
Depreciation AER fiEhfie  WEARZ
in excess of FEEA HHEE ARHE  ROWER
the related LS Unrealised Write- Future  Undistributed
depreciation Revaluation profits on down of henefit of profit of @it
allowances  of properties inventories inventories tax losses subsidiaries Total
TEn TEx T T Tin Tin Tin
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
RZE-NEMA-A At 1 April 2018 (6,171) 100,013 (1,946) (1,512) (1,794) 2207 90,817
BREPGIA) R (Credited) charged to profit or loss (316) 2,327 (250) 1,162 = (1,993) 930
f‘ Rk Charged to reserves = 10,503 = = = = 10,503
W=2-AFZA=+-AR= At31 March 2019 and
E-hEMA-A 1 April 2019 (6,487) 112,843 (2,196) (350) (1,794) 234 102,250
BaRGIA) IR (Credited) charged to profit o loss (1,374) (3,393) (247) @ 1,794 (234) (3,458)
REREA Credited to reserves = (1,405) = o = = (1,405)
RZE-Z2£=A=+-H At 31 March 2020 (7,861) 108,045 (2,443) (354) - - 97,387
= i =i
2020 2019
THET THET
HK$’000 HK$'000
RS B AR R RIER Net deferred tax assets recognised in the
EEFRSHERE @ﬁﬁ consolidated statement of financial
position (566) (600)
R E B SRR RIER Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in
ELFEHH:%TE/?%E the consolidated statement of
financial position 97,953 102,850
97,387 102,250
RERAMBHEERATEELEBERFERZE Included in unrecognised tax losses is an amount of
R =FREMZKIEI,080,0008 T (=F HK$11,080,000 (2019: HK$8,924,000) which can be
— N 18,924,000 ) - IBELEBBEFE carried forward up to three years from the year in which
RZBERZEFAMEAZFKIE52,540,000% 5T the loss was incurred, an amount of HK$52,540,000 (2019:
(=ZZB—h%5 : 78,055,00058 7t) & 7] B &E £ &5 HK$78,055,000) which can be carried forward up to five
BFEER2BHRS T FANEHRZFIES5895,000 years from the year in which the loss was incurred and an
BT (ZF—NEF :5,895000/87T) - RIERAE amount of HK$5,895,000 (2019: HK$5,895,000) which can
B R 45) > 8-%8249,570,0008 T (ZF— N be carried forward up to ten years from the year in which
% : 150,984,0007% 7T ) I & [ i Hf o the loss was incurred. The remaining balance of

HK$249,570,000 (2019: HK$150,984,000) does not expire
under the current tax legislation.
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HE-ZT-ZTF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

22. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) LIABILITIES (continued)

REBZE2F=ZA=+—H  XEERERRE As at 31 March 2020, the Group has deductible temporary
EEURD* BMERKBZBRESR differences in relation to impairment of right-of-use assets
24,880,000 T (=2 —NF : THT) AJEM and property, plant and equipment of HK$24,880,000
ERFERE o AT AT BER FE SR Bl m Al it AT 4K (2019: HK$nil). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
NERFEHERENZA  RAEREEAERE in relation to such temporary difference as it is not

BERELEMSHEE -

probable that taxable profit will be available against which

the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

23. fBE 23. BORROWINGS
et 33 “E-NEF
2020 2019
THET FTHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BHEM Term loans 5,910 6,492
BERBEBEX Trust receipt loans 3,170 =
HitEHRTEE Other short-term bank borrowings 25,000 -
34,080 6,492
FELMBRITEESBERARERT IHRE All the above bank borrowings were secured and repayable
= : as follows:
— —E-AF
2020 2019
FHET FTHER
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEREREEGRRERETI The carrying amounts of bank loans
HREEZRITERZ that contain a repayment on demand
BREE (ML) : clause but repayable (Note):
—FR Within one year 28,751 581
—FREWMFR After 1 year but within 2 years 581 581
MERERFR After 2 years but within 5 years 4,748 5,330
34,080 6,492
MizE : AR BRBEERGEFSEEERBH Note: The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment
FREtE - WES AFEMRERBEERRZ dates set out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect of

B/ 488
o

any repayment on demand clause.
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23. BB (&)
RZB-FE=A=+-—0 KAE@MZETE
BT RME#{E52,100,0008 T (ZZE— N
% 130,300,000 70) 2 Tt RIEBEY 2 EAE
HERAQARRMZIERERIER -

LHMRITEEENEE TRAQATMBARR
AEBHMBRRLREEEZH - REER
BRLEULTHBEEEREERBERARAAZEE
BRER o fASKEERBREER  AIBERERE
B LEMRITEE - AEBETEHEZERGETZ
EZHCBER - FREERBHESRREE Y
HE—SFBERME - R F= A
=t—HB YEEBEREBEEEARTEEZZ
H(ZE—hF &) o

23.

BORROWINGS (continued)

At 31 March 2020, the bank borrowings of the Group were
secured by legal charges over land and buildings with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$52,100,000 (2019:
HK$30,300,000) and guaranteed by the Company.

The above bank borrowings are subject to the fulfilment of
certain covenants relating to the financial position ratios of
a Company’s subsidiary and the Group. Mr. Chan and
Ms. Tsui shall remain as the directors and major
shareholder of the Company. If the Group were to breach
the covenants the above secured bank borrowings would
become payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors
its compliance with these covenants. Further details of the
Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in note 31.
As at 31 March 2020, none of the covenants relating to the

secured bank borrowings had been breached (2019: nil).

144

24. BEASNBE 24. PROVISION FOR ONEROUS CONTRACTS

THET
HK$'000
R=Z-—NFMA—H At 1 April 2018 1,898
FRRE Provision made during the year 3,652
FREEBARE Provision utilised during the year (1,089)
RZE-hFE=B=+—~H At 31 March 2019 4,461

EREBMBREENF 6FRAR Adjustment upon application of HKFRS 16
(Mt&E2) (note 2) (3,596)
FRAEBAEE Provision utilised during the year (865)

R-ZBE-ZEF=A=+—H

At 31 March 2020
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24. BFEAHNEE (E)

FEBBRBEBRNER 2 ETER2BEESE
BHELRE - REZXZEH  BITERER
ZARARRERABBZE EHETHERRE
TEEZ2EBENZE - Alt BESVEBHBEER
BEPER - MASEEECSLHEER A
FABREEERETRNAEAEHR (DR —F
EWMF) 2 HEEEUAREERETEDA - i
AEEEMBEEEIMENKEERGE BB
BERESREIRLEEREDA -

REREBMBREEDF1655%E - AEERE
ERDRERE B BEREERNE 63 ZAE
AEBMBEREEEI6.CIOOIKRATER
Bk AEBERBEDRERZEEFAE
EEAHAARGEUBERRRPBRRAZER
HEZRESE NERKLESZESTAR
DBERRTERIAREAREEZBEHEE
B 14%865,00058 TT °
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24.

PROVISION FOR ONEROUS CONTRACTS (continued)

The provision was made for onerous lease contracts for
certain stores of the Outside Hong Kong operation. Under
these contracts, the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations exceed the economic benefits expected to be
derived from sales generated by these stores. Consequently,
a provision for onerous contracts was recognised in profit
or loss. Should the Group continues to operate the relevant
stores, the above provision will be utilised through fulfilling
the lease obligation under remaining lease term which
ranges from less than one year to two years, as well as
associated costs. Should the Group reaches agreement for
early termination with the relevant landlords, the provision

will be utilised upon the settlement from early termination.

Upon adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group opts to apply
HKFRS 16.C10(b) practical expedient at date of initial
application of HKFRS 16 where the Group adjusted the
amount of provision for onerous leases recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position immediately
before the date of initial application to the relevant
right-of-use assets. The provision of HK$865,000 for
onerous lease not recognised as right-of-use asset on initial
application was utilised upon termination of lease during

this year.
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25.

26.

Bg 2 25. SHARE CAPITAL
EERBBITRA Authorised and issued share capital
—E-%F s
2020 2019
IR & B R 8B
Number k] Number ot
of shares Amount of shares Amount
TR FHET TR FTHET
000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$’000
EE Authorised:
BEREMB.01EBTZ Ordinary shares of
EER HK$0.01 each 1,000,000 10,000 1,000,000 10,000
ERTRARE: Issued and fully paid:
REEBRBRREER At beginning of the year and
at end of the year 287,930 2,880 287,930 2,880

EEREEAGRERTEERZRKRE » B
FARERLBRUE-EREE - ALAE
BREXQNBzRGEEZRREES -

BARERGE 26.
REBRBEE B CGRHMEAE S5 EMRG) B
REB(EBKRI) EBRHERNERAZ2EES
EGRFIMAE ST E (REestE)) - BES
AEAHRBYUSATE 2 RAEEIGERET

2o RIERERE BEEREESERES

BEWA Z5%mZstE8ER B8 AEEK

A LEPBR%30,000/8 T ° SBE ST E 2 AR TIRD

BRI o

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s

residual assets.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution retirement scheme administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.

Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest immediately.
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TEAZHBELARCSHEAMTBRFEEZ
REMRKTE - LEWBARNARTENME
ERREFTzE TRELREZEIHER - #
RIENGERE o

REBEEXEB CHWBARZEECRESH
H&aEY TRASIRAIEE 2 REMUGE -
HHELARARSEAEHRAFEZEERA
FERBE WK FRAURERNEES
TRERZEARKERFR -

TRF D03 BT B 2 B iz & T 2 B2 i 37 bR BRUS AR
BehRAABEHB ((HRIEE]) - HEL
AREIRENEIHFH cETEOLEAHR
NESHF BEPROBESHY - EHRR
AXHEEREZANER - B2 REEMEK
% HEERARINIRAKE 2B EE—
TEERE -

BREES  ANEENBEMERESRKE
MRz HMEKREE -

RERKETE ZHRRELERFREBERAHRR -
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26. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS (continued)

The subsidiaries in the Mainland China participate in a
defined contribution scheme organised by the local
government. These subsidiaries are required to make
contributions at certain prescribed rates of the relevant
Mainland China employees’ salaries to the scheme.

Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

Employees of the subsidiary carrying on business in Taiwan
chose to participate in a defined contribution scheme
governed by the Labour Pension Act of Taiwan. This
subsidiary contributes at 6% of the total salaries of the
participating employees who have chosen to participate in
the defined contribution scheme, the contribution deposited
into individual pension accounts at the Bureau of Labour

Insurance of Taiwan.

Employees of the subsidiary in Singapore participate in the
Central Provident Fund scheme (the “CPF”) organised by
the government of Singapore. This subsidiary and its
employees are required to contribute a certain percentage
of the employees’ payroll to the CPF. The contributions are
charged to the profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the CPF. The subsidiary has no
further obligations for the actual pension payments or

post-retirement benefits beyond its contributions.

Save as set out above, the Group has no other material
obligations to make payments in respect of retirement

benefits of the employees.

Contributions to the defined contribution scheme are

charged to profit or loss when incurred.
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27.

28.

XERE

REZB-AFTH  AEEREE-—ZXHBEQ
A(EEMBLR]) EEEN  HEW—2H
HREBREBEETBREINTRES AR EMZ
RSB ERELRERLESR - EXEE
HEZERSHRERCXEFTBNE AR 1
FRERRAERBEZSUBRBRRTIBEHER
RiE BENBLARAMEEBERELMARY
EMERE - AKECEBIREORERRE
REHE ESHEEQAEEZIINREME
RER - AUR-ZB-ZHF=A=1+-HAE
PREBHRRHREE -

27. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In October 2015, a subsidiary of the Group in Hong Kong
(the “Hong Kong Subsidiary”) received a notice that it was
being sued by a fabric manufacturer under a writ of
summons in the High Court of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region in respect of alleged infringement of
copyright. The generally indorsed writ of summons was
subsequently served on the Hong Kong Subsidiary but the
statement of claim has not yet been served up to the date of
issue of these financial statements and the Hong Kong
Subsidiary continues to deny any liability in respect of the
above claim. An external counsel has been engaged to
defend the said claim and the Directors will continue to
seek advice from the Group’s external counsel. No
provision has therefore been made in respect of this claim
as at 31 March 2020.

&R AIE 28. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
ft et 33 —E-NEF
2020 2019
THET THET
HK$’000 HK$'000
MUBEBEIE  BERRE Capital expenditure contracted for but
EHESEEE S p e not provided for in the consolidated
BB cEAXH financial statements in respect of
acquisition of property, plant and
equipment 180 627
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29. REHEE 29. OPERATING LEASE
AEBEERAEBEA The Group as lessee
RBEHR  REFTRBKECLEHEEARE At the end of the reporting period, the total future minimum
2R BERENRBENT ¢ lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are

payable as follows:

—ZE-NF
2019
THER
HK$'000
—FR Within 1 year 85,105
—E#ELFR After 1 year but within 5 years 72,021
157,126
AEBRKEHEHEAETWE - 25HEN— The Group leases a number of properties under operating
BRUMLTBP—FE=F - leases. These leases typically run for an initial period of
one to three years.
RENEEZHERESTHRIN  ZEBARSE In addition to the minimum lease payments disclosed
THEYXERL —TWRAILERBEESMR above, the Group has commitments to make rental
BZAE - payments at a percentage of revenue for certain leased
properties.
AEBEEHHBEA The Group as lessor
HECZRREEESASRAIINT : Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as
follows:
—E-%F
2020
FERT
HK$’000
—FR Within 1 year 4,563
—EZEBRER After 1 year but within 5 years 1,316
5,879
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29.

30.

RedEsaE (&)
REERR - ANEBEEME SR T RIRRE
R SRR

29.

OPERATING LEASE (continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum

lease payments:

—E-NEF
2019
T
HK$’000

—FR
—FREIFR

Within 1 year
After 1 year but within 5 years

1,623
534

2,157

FRHE-ROSRY—FE=F - BAKE
HEYTEsgEEE -

EsAkER

FEEEREFA CERERIRERNEEEN
EERBSELEEERE  tMBBERKE
KERBECEMRBRBEERUSERSNE
BRE BESRRALECDHBERAHGIEOE
wRFE o

AEEBELEHRHAEBLERREE B
7 85 B R SR 5 4 SR B2 AP A B AR 2
PR R A R 2 IEUE T4 - 3 AT
TR0 LY AR R R

R-Z-ZFHE AEEARE-Z-NF2
K EERHBEARBUAERRRBESKTRE
NARBEEHE - REFIABREKF - &
SEETABRKNTRRZBRESHE  BITHR
7 BEEHEBRENHEEEUE MR S K

7 o
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30.

The leases typically run for an initial period of one to three
years. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

During 2020, the Group's strategy in monitoring its capital
structure, which was unchanged from 2019, was to
maintain a sufficient cash level to meet its liquidity
requirements. In order to maintain or adjust the cash level,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends payable to
shareholders, issue new shares, raise new debt financing or
sell assets to increase the cash level.

Annual Report 2020 4 £ 4 #




Annual Report 2020 4 4

Ao A S 25 A Mk

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-ZT-ZTF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

31. @I A 31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
ERIAEZEH Categories of financial instruments
g g 33 “E-NF
2020 2019
THERT THER
HK$’000 HK$'000
cREE Financial assets
1 85 R AR Amortised cost 70,884 80,128
cREaE Financial liabilities
B A Amortised cost 49,836 21,513

SREBEENEHRBE

FE -RBEL - ARREWEARDEREE
EBRCERERBRTESL - AEBFRAEZ
ZERBEAEEERZSAMTRAZMH
R EEER R B EMRT X -

= B /m B R B B 1
AEEZEFERBEZREBYIRN - HitfE
W~ BERRITES - AEEALERSHEM
ERmREMEEREER  WBEZETH
EEMBNEERR -

AEEFERESFHRERTEEMSAE
BEZUBRBINEAEERRKEGFETE
MRARMBZBCEATHEENIREE °

Financial risk management objectives and policies

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The
Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to

manage these risks are described below.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables, other receivables, deposits and bank balances.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with these

financial assets.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from
the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial

position.
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31

152

. 2®MIA#E)

TEEREENENRBGE (E)

=B m AR R E TS (78

FE W AR

ZEHEZTBURSELEET  URE LR
FHEAFITR - ABREREEEERVIRRE
BA(EZRAERAIHE BEARAKES) &
e FERR  AEEEEEEEZRNEEERE
BIEERE FEFMRAMBERRER - YU
BRREURE R W EEHEE - 1o RE
BREHR  AEEEEERFSEENEHEHN
AREEEE - LR TWRE S EEH S
HURELES 18 o 255 B FE R BR SRR AR R ML A T
HEBYBREENESIARENEAREE
B8 - BEtERBHEEATHENRBRRNE
HEERR AEEUEHFIRARKSEE
AR WBEBAENTE - BURREAA
HAEL R & B A B A B AK0R 20 A #E1T M8 BU =T
ft - R EEBEXRDIREEBWIRRTAR F1
ABEBRENRMMEE  ARBARERL
ERAY TEEN RS ATIE AR (Flan
REBALEMETRERBETRTNER R
FRARBREE) (FHRAR - AEEHEEREEM
ZEREEER RS BN E R AR
MES -
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31.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Trade receivables

Retail sales are mainly on a cash basis, either in cash, debit
card or credit card payments. In order to minimise the
credit risk in regard of balances with trade receivables
debtors, which mainly consist of credit card institutions,
department stores and malls, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the management of the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. The Group applies simplified approach on trade
receivables to assess for ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9. To
measure ECL of trade receivables at amortised cost, the
Group applies internal credit rating for its counterparties
and they are assessed individually by reference to past
default experience, current past due exposure of the
debtors and an analysis of the debtors’ current financial
position. The ECL rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information (for
example, the current and forecasted global economy which
reflect the general economic conditions of the industry in
which the debtors operate) that is available without undue
cost or effort. Such forward-looking information is used by
the management of the Group to assess both the current as
well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting

date.
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31.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The credit risk on credit card receivables is limited because
the counterparties are bank/financial institutions with high
external credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies. As at the end of the reporting period,
there is no credit-impaired balance (2019: nil) of trade
receivables except for an amount of HK$81,000 (2019:
HK$nil) of trade receivable which was fully impaired. In
addition, the management of the Group considers those not
credit-impaired trade receivables were collectible based on
historical observed default rates over the expected life of
the debtors and adjusted for forward-looking information.
The Directors are of the opinion that allowance for
impairment on the remaining trade receivables was
insignificant and thus negligible to be made.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on the trade
receivables. As at 31 March 2020, 29% (2019: 11%) of
trade receivables is due from the Group’s largest
counterparty and 60% (2019: 30%) of trade receivables is
due from the five largest counterparties. The management
of the Group closely monitors the subsequent settlement by
the counterparties.

Other financial assets at amortised costs

For other receivables and rental and other deposits, the
Directors make periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of significant balances based on historical
settlement records, past experience, and also available
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
The Directors believe that there is no material credit risk
inherent in the Group’s outstanding balance of other
receivables and deposits. Based on assessment by the
management of the Group, the ECL for other receivables
and deposits is insignificant.

The bank balances are placed in various authorised
financial institutions either with high credit ratings or good
financial background and the Directors consider the credit
risk of such authorised financial institutions is low.
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31.

SWMIA (&)
TREREENENRBEEK (&)

T EEZEE
R-ZB-EF=A=+—H  AEEZRBHE
BB EREEEX24,850,000/8TT c BLEZ

o

M m

“EF=A=1+-HLEFE FEEELEL
BEMEL29,6850008TT c RZE-FF
B=+—H > rx&EFE2HEREEEE
Y458 531,829,0008 TR ABARITHEDN
23,101,000 7T - RELE - AREBEERITHE
LB ET R 865,000,000 7T 2 SRITRLE ©
BRARENASAEBEATRME 2 IKIF & 5T AT
RERZAERF - ESFEHTR L MEER
FTEEERAERRE -

a

[1] D

AEEZERAEHERRBESTE MR
REEFEARSRHE  UENFEREHZR
BEEEE -
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BRIV ERHEZFERH  WEZEE
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31.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$24,850,000. For the year ended 31 March 2020, the
Group generated operating cash flows of approximately
HK$29,685,000. As at 31 March 2020, the total cash and
cash equivalents of HK$31,829,000 were held by the
Group and unutilised bank facilities amounted to
approximately HK$23,101,000 were available. Subsequent
to the year end, the Group negotiated with a bank for the
revision of a bank facility not exceeding HK$65,000,000.
The facilities are still subject to the completion of legal
procedure relating to the registration of charge over the
security provided by the Group. The Directors do not
anticipate any significant difficulties in the completion of
the said legal procedure.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash outflows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period).

As the Directors do not expect the banks would exercise
the rights to demand repayment, the bank borrowings
subject to repayment on demand clause are expected to be
repayable based on the specific repayment terms. Hence,
for these bank borrowings, the following tables show the
contractual undiscounted cash outflows according to the
specific repayment terms and, separately, the impact to the
timing of the cash outflows if the lenders were to invoke
their unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate
effect.
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31. €@ T E (&) 31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
TREAREENENRBE (&) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
BB 2 EE (E) Liquidity risk (continued)
St 2.2
2020
TORFRRER
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
—-% MER
EmER  BREER
BEEX More than ~ More than
R3H —ER  1yearbut 2 years but KEE
On Within ~ lessthan less than &3 Carrying
demand 1 year 2 years 5 years Total amount

TEL TEL TRT TRT TRT TR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000

TREREERUER Bank borrowings subject to repayment
ZBTEE on demand clauses:
EREERHER Scheduled repayment - 803 780 4,763 6,346 5,910
B e Other short-terms borrowings = 28,494 = = 28,494 28,170
E B REMEMN Trade and other payables = 15,756 - = 15,756 15,756
S 85 780 4763 505% 49,836
BEEHAZEX Adjustments to disclose cash flows
HBEEENHRTER on bank borrowings based on lender's
REREZRERE right to demand repayment 34,080 (29,297) (780) (4,763) (760) -
34,080 15,756 - - 49,836 49,836
HEEE Lease liabilities - 62,610 26,399 2,492 91,501 88,660
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31. @I A(E)

TEEREENENRBGE (E)

31.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
BB 2R (E) Liquidity risk (continued)
“E-NE
2019
ARRFRRER
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
—#% mER
{EmER BLER
RERA More than ~ More than
B2 —E@ Tyearbut 2 years but FHEE
On Within less than less than &t Carrying
demand 1 year 2 years 5 years Total amount
TiEn TiEn TiEn T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREREERUER Bank borrowings subject to repayment
ZBITEE on demand clauses:
BREETBEN Scheduled repayment - 800 783 5,539 7,122 6,492
AR R A AR Trade and other payables - 15,021 - - 15,021 15,021
— 15,821 783 5,539 22,143 21,513
REEFAZEREE Adjustments to disclose cash flows on
BEENURTEE bank borrowings based on lender's
REREZRERE right to demand repayment 6,492 (800) (783) (5,539) (630) -
0,492 15,021 - - 21,513 21,513
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31. €@ T E (&) 31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
TREAREENENRBE (&) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Fi| 2 7@ f Interest rate risk
AEBAZEBREIERBFETHEAE - The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from its

variable rate financial liabilities.

(i) FIELEZ (i) Interest rate profile
TRAAEERBEHARAEEREE The following table details the interest rate profile
RemaBzREEE of the Group’s interest-bearing financial assets and

financial liabilities at the end of the reporting
period:
. —E-NF
2020 2019
BERFI= BRFI=
Effective THERT Effective FET
interest rate $’000 interest rate $'000
EERMEERMEE :  Fixed rate financial assets:
—RITER — Deposits with banks FER
0.2% 3,000 N/A -
SERNZELFESE :  Variable rate financial
liabilities:
—BIRBRTEE — Secured bank borrowings 2.61%
£4.27%
2.61%
to 4.27% 34,080 3.58% 6,492

(i) EREZ W (i) Sensitivity analysis
REZZBZZBE=ZF=+—H  fhatFEE At 31 March 2020, it is estimated that a general
BRd 1220 @E L - fHtbfTE A% decrease/increase of 20 basis points in interest rates,
EE#FTE AXEEZBRFEESBR with all other variables held constant, would have
2 BEBRL 57,0008 T (= decreased/increased the Group’s loss after tax and
—h&E  BRBEEEHD SENRREE accumulated losses by HK$57,000 (2019: decreased/
FUIE A0, @2 11,000/87T) © increased of loss after tax and increased/decreased of

retained profits HK$11,000).
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31
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& T R AR AR FE A9 BR AR BA I SR 1T 45 BR LAAB RS
SEERNIDEEBUININIINESE  BEHE
5B SN LR o ASSE ) B A 30 SN
BE - AW EEEEEIERRE  YRFE
FrigZ M E RN E R o

31.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis (continued)
The sensitivity analysis above indicates the annualised
impact on the Group’s loss after tax (and (accumulated
losses) retained profits) that would arise assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to floating
rate instruments which expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk at that date. The analysis does not
take into account exposure to fair value interest rate
risk arising from fixed rate instruments as the Group
does not hold any fixed rate instruments which are
measured at fair value in the financial statements. In
management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure

during the relevant years.

Currency risk

Certain trade receivables and payables and bank balances
are denominated in foreign currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities, which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency

exposure should the need arises.
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31.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Currency risk (continued)

(i)  Exposure to currency risk

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency

REDRNIREEDT : denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end
of the reporting periods are as follows:
aE &8
Assets Liabilities
—E-%F —FT-F ZB-BF —F-NF
2020 2019 2020 2019
TR TER TERT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT Euros = - (3,949) (1,133)
BT Hong Kong dollars 73,862 85,779 (59,933) (62,977)
AR#E Renminbi 809 719 (7,886) (6,237)

(i)  BREEZHT
TRETAEERREARKEAEET AR
B IEEZRNE ASBHAEE 2R
REFEE (RiTEE) REEF 2B
FE ERIJHEMGERSHEFTTE -

(i) Sensitivity analysis
The following table indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s loss after tax and (accumulated losses)
retained profits that would arise if foreign exchange
rates to which the group entities have significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period had
changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables

remained constant.
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31. €T E (&) 31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
TREREENENRBEK (&) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
BEwmpg (&) Currency risk (continued)
(i)  BURE 77 (&) (i) Sensitivity analysis (continued)
t- St 2.3 ZE-NE
2020 2019
R BEAEE  EHEE t# RE R
(%) #m o #mOED) (TH) BE&EER By
Increase (HD) Increase Increase &1 (FL4) (8 m)
(decrease) Increase  (decrease) (decrease) Increase Decrease
in foreign (decrease) in in foreign (decrease) (increase)
exchange in loss accumulated  exchange inloss in retained
rates after tax losses rates after tax profits
THRL THRL TER TER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B Euros 10% 330 330 10% 95 95
(10)% (330) (330) (10)% (95) (95)
BT Hong Kong dollars 5% (291) (291) 5% (613) (613)
(5)% 291 291 (5)% 013 6013
ARE Renminbi 5% 295 295 5% 231 231
(5)% (295) (295) (5)% (231) (231)
EEERA  HRFRAZEBARERREESE In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
EzRE  $REITEEFMERET S L unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as
BARM - the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the relevant year.
AS/-] Fair values
FEERMIAEYREARN-_ZE_BFER_F All financial instruments are carried at amounts not

—NEF=ZA=ZT-—BZAREBETEREARER
ZEFIIE -

materially different from their fair values as at 31 March
2020 and 2019.
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32. EBEALTRS 32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Rz BRREMM T MEE 2R S RERH In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
S REEFTYTHEREBALZRS elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered

into the following material related party transactions:

(@ BREBATZIXS (@) Transactions with related companies

g 32 —E-NF

2020 2019

FHET FTHER

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETIES2HERX Rental expense for staff quarter (1,200) (1,200)

REMEZHEWA Rental income from investment properties 175 175
ZEEHMRPAEZ Rental expense for a retail store and office

HelxX space - (54)

PR 75 & W A Service fee income 1,061 1,012

R ER X Service fee expense (23) (411)

MEEATEE Purchase of fashion apparels and
B ied AR & % AiC 8 accessories from a joint venture = (5)
fB B B i) EC B Purchase of fashion accessories @) (24)

B AR Y 2HERA c HERX
BRBBEWA - REEM AR EEIIZR]
HNEHERBZHRAEE -

by TEEEAEHE (b)
TEREEAESME (RRITFI0MKEX
RNFARBAATES 2 HE (TEEMRE
HEEEBES2ENEN))WT :

Rental income, rental expense, service fee income,
service fee expense, purchase and sales with related
companies were at terms mutually agreed by the
parties concerned.

Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel,
representing amounts paid to the Company’s executive
directors excluding the benefits in kind regarding the
provision of a rent free quarter, as disclosed in note
10, is as follows:

= —E-NF

2020 2019

FTET FH&T

HK$’000 HK$’000

EHEERA Short-term employee benefits 8,085 8,728
BEBZESER Post-employment benefits 54 54
8,139 8,782
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33. MEEBMELEBEZHR

TREAFEERETHEEEEZEBF
B BRASRIRSED BMETDARELE
BEARERNIARRRERENAER 4R
BRERERADEABETH2REREZ

BfE-

33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of

cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

P IR S FEfFFI S HEEE RITEE
Dividend Interest Lease Bank @t
payable payable liabilities  borrowings Total
THET THET TERT THET THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(PBrE21) (Pt EE23)
(note 21) (note 23)
R=ZZ—NEFMA—H At1 April 2018 _ _ _ 7,073 7,073
EERRE (fzF12) Dividends declared (note 12) 11,517 = = = 11,517
B R E KA Finance cost recognised - 510 - - 510
MERERE Financing cash flows (11,517) (510) — (581) (12,608)
R-E-NF At 31 March 2019
=A=+—H - - - 6,492 6,492
EREBMEREER  Adjustment upon application
F165EE T (15E2)  of HKFRS 16 (note 2) = = 117,337 = 117,337
RZZE-REMA—H At1 April 2019 = = 117,337 6,492 123,829
SEBRE Foreign exchange translation - = 382 = 382
AVHEE New lease entered = = 36,363 = 36,363
REAILHE Early termination of leases = = (9,483) = (9,483)
HEEFT Lease modified = = (7,342) = (7,342)
BB E B A Finance cost recognised = 728 4,096 = 4,824
MERLRE Financing cash flows = (728) (52,693) 27,588 (25,833)
R-E-BF At 31 March 2020
=A=t—H = = 88,660 34,080 122,740
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-ZT-ZTF=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY

Details of the Group’s principal subsidiaries during the
years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 are set out below,

the class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated:

ERTRAR
B/
Ul BAwf
REEHE Particulars of issued and AEERERE
NAER Place of incorporation fully paid-up share/ Attributable equity ~— FEXH
Name of company and operation registered capital interest to the Group  Principal activity
“E2RE CE-NE
2020 2019
Moiselle (BVI) Limited ABEARHS 2000888 100% 100% REZR
British Virgin Islands EERESS Investment holding
2,000 shares of
US$1 each
EEGRAA BR 500,0008 & 100% 100% EBERHRHRES
Beautirich Limited Hong Kong 500,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel and
accessories
BHBEHRERAT & BLRERTRE 100% 100% WREBRAERE
Boo Gie Garment Factory Limited Hong Kong 200,000 43 Sourcing of materials and
LER property holding
1,800,001 R IR £3
Deferred non-voting
200,000 shares
Ordinary 1,800,001 shares
BEHEERRAT 30 BB 100% 100%  REZR
Boogie Holdings Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Investment holding
B2 @8 BRAT B2 4R - = i RE R EHE S
Bright Star (HK) Limited Hong Kong 4 shares (MfzF)  Trading of fashion apparel
(Note) and accessories
RARRRAT B 2RRA 100% 100% REZR
Busy Win International Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Investment holding
AfRRAA B 1008 13 100% 100%  REZR
Fortress Power Limited Hong Kong 100 shares Investment holding
BREARARLT BR 300,000 & 100% 100% BERHRHRES
Grand Bridge International Limited Hong Kong 300,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel and
accessories
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4. ARFEEMBR A 215 (&)

Fauls
REERA

34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

ERTRAR
B/
Bxzih

Particulars of issued and

AREEERE

NEER Place of incorporation fully paid-up share/ Attributable equity ~ FEEH
Name of company and operation registered capital interest to the Group ~ Principal activity
“R-RF CEAF
2020 2019
LERERERAR B 1,000,0008 B 100% 100% REER
iMaroon International Company Limited ~ Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares Investment holding
WEREARALT BR 10,0008 43 100% 100% MR
Landwin Investments Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares Property holding
R BR) BRAA BB 1,000,0008 B 100% 100% SERHBHRELD
Moiselle (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel and
accessories
RREARARLT B BB 100% 100% REER
Moiselle International Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Investment holding
Moiselle Singapore Pte. Ltd. 3 g 500,000k 8 REE 100% 100% BERHRHRELS
Singapore 1Hm Retail of fashion apparel and
500,000 shares of accessories
SG$1 each
ZEERAE AREARAS IREEIXT 100% 100% SERHRHRES
Onexcel Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US$1 Retail of fashion apparel and
accessories
R2REARAT B 500,000 £ 100% 100% EBERHRHRES
Pearl Jade Investments Limited Hong Kong 500,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel and
accessories
REARERLT B 500,000 £ 100% 100%  EBERHRHRES
Perfect National International Limited Hong Kong 500,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel and
accessories
RK Moiselle Fashions Limited B 1,498 K% 70% 0% HREERGRES
Hong Kong 1,429 shares Wholesale of fashion apparel
and accessories
ERRARRAT B 1,000 & 2 100% 100% WEHE
Shirley Investments Limited Hong Kong 1,000 shares Property holding
EERAARAT B BB A 100% 100%  REZR
Sky Well Investment Limited Hong Kong 4 shares Investment holding
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34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

BRTRAR
B /i
Eaug A ERif
REEHE Particulars of issued and rEBERRE
NEER Place of incorporation fully paid-up share/ Attributable equity ~ EEE#
Name of company and operation registered capital interest to the Group  Principal activity
“E-%F -E-AF
2020 2019
ERBRERAT A it fi & 25,000 100% 100% SERHRHRES
Treasure Light Fashion Limited Macau BET Retail of fashion apparel and
Registered capital accessories
MOP25,000
ZHRERRAT Bk 1,000,000 R 13 100% 100% ZERERAREH
United Sino Investment Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel and
accessories
REBMERLA Bk 500,000 & 4 100% 100% REER
Viewgood Overseas Limited Hong Kong 500,000 shares Investment holding
BRER (R BRAF RE RS 2,100,000/8 7T 100% 100% SRR
Ming Fung Garment Manufacturing Mainland China HK$2,100,000 Manufacturing of garments
(Shenzhen) Company Limited*
MIESEEHBERAF: RER AE#500,0007T 70% 0%  EERBBEH
Shenzhen Baozhuo Fashion Wholesale Mainland China RMB500,000 PR B A
Co., Ltd.* Retail and wholesale of fashion
apparel and accessories
AMIEXERTERRAR" E R A&#2,000,0007 100% 100% FERBREH
Shen Zhen Graceful Fashion Retail Mainland China RMB2,000,000 R B
Limited Company* Retail and wholesale of fashion
apparel and accessories
RERE (R ARAF" G 8,400,000 ¢ 100% 100%  BHERK
Yubao Fashionable Dress (Shenzhen) Mainland China HK$8,400,000 Manufacturing of garments

Co., Ltd.*

* REPEEGEMZIBBERSE -

ek : R=ZE—-—NFEXA=Z+LH BE (FHB)
ERATB(EBE] —RUBRHHROK
BRHES 2 AR BRERELEET—A
BUE=F EBERHLEBHEFEE
356,0008 7T TEAEWEE R T FKIE
3,100,0007% 7t LA K FE 1+ BR 7K K EL At FE {4 3R
3,456,00058 7T - AEEFEBEHENE QA

Z U 356,00078 JT ©

* These are wholly-owned foreign investment enterprises
registered under the laws of the PRC.

Note: On 27 June 2018, Bright Star (HK) Limited (“Bright Star”), a
company engaged in trading of fashion apparel and
accessories, was disposed to an independent third party at
zero consideration. Bright Star had a net liabilities of
HK$356,000 which contains mainly of amounts due from
group companies of HK$3,100,000 and trade and other
payables of HK$3,456,000 as of the date of disposal and a
gain on disposal of subsidiary of HK$356,000 was recorded
by the Group.

Annual Report 2020 £ 47 # Moiselle International Holdings Limited % &¥ B4 Bx £ [ # B 2 7] 165




Aok 7 S 25 R M i

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_T-ZTF=A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2020

35. BEHREER

166

R-ZBE-ZEFRA-TNA  FEEERESE
EMBARE -—RREMITIT LB R - K
&3] B EE x5 £65,000,00058 T Z SRITHE ©
RIERE R 2 R > AEBRRITER &
EREERBLEIMAERDRAESEREAR
R-FBRARRABHRAR=-Z_ZFFHA
“THNBZAEHEE - NEATHREBEAR
REBRZEEEFE FOU2EHBARTH
E EERHEAZEFTSHREENEARR
o

2009BRAESHEFEIRZZRELERESS
HHAEBMAERET B 2EXBERREY
B -AEEEEBZHITEEHNBEPRR
BEAR - WO MBHMRBEFEBHE
R-RZZBZFMNALtEE=ZTFF A
TN AEEEHRNMR2ZTEEREFE
% DUNSARISF R 2 BEHEE - RE20198
PEREEHE-—SEE AR - HINRTE
EHBRER-Z-_ZEFE A ThBEEHMN
oM BERERBLERSBHRENEBET
BeHERBNRBESTRE B8 &
RZzEEEZE  BAEESEMATHAEE
KeE - RERERVBRR 2 HBELE -

35. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 28 May 2020, the Group, through its wholly-owned
subsidiary, entered into a facility letter with an existing
bank for a revised banking facility up to an aggregate
amount of HK$65,000,000. Pursuant to the terms of the
facility letter, the Group undertakes with the bank that the
Directors, Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui shall remain to be the
directors and the largest shareholder of the Company. The
details were disclosed in the Company’s announcement on
28 May 2020. The full availability of the banking facility is
still subject to the completion of legal procedure regarding
the registration of charge of security. The Directors do not
anticipate any significant difficulties in completing the

procedure.

The global health emergency caused by the pandemic of
COVID-19 has had serious impacts on the Group’s business
in all the markets it operates. In Hong Kong, certain retail
stores of the Group were closed after the end of reporting
period. In addition, from 7 April 2020 to 18 June 2020, the
Group’s retail stores in Singapore temporarily ceased
business under the requirements of Ministry of Health of
Singapore government to enhance safe distancing measures
to reduce the risk of further local transmission of
COVID-19. The retail stores in Singapore has subsequently
reopened on 19 June 2020. However, the duration and
intensity of this global health emergency and its related
disruptions are uncertain. In the opinion of the Directors,
given the dynamic nature of these circumstances, the
related impact on the Group’s operation, cash flows and
financial condition cannot be reasonably estimated at this

time.
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY
g g 33 —E-NF
2020 2019
THERT TR
HK$’000 HK$'000
FRBEE Non-current assets
RBE AR 2RE Investments in a subsidiary 61,671 61,671
FEUR BT B A RIFRIE Amount due from a subsidiary 222,024 217,094
283,695 278,765
MENEE Current assets
H {th & 3K Other receivables 142 10,139
RITEBRES Bank balances and cash 58 94
200 10,233
REEE Current liability
H th FE 3% Other payables 888 1,176
RE(EB)EEEE Net current (liabilities) assets (688) 9,057
EEFHE NET ASSETS 283,007 287,822
BEXR#E CAPITAL AND RESERVES
R AR Share capital 2,880 2,880
& Reserves 280,127 284,942
MRRESEE TOTAL EQUITY 283,007 287,822
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36. ARFZ2HBRREK (&)

36.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

AATREBEZEE ! Movement in the Company’s reserves:
BRR
IR 435 B BRER R &% Al R A5
Share Contributed Retained Total
premium surplus profits equity
FTAET FTAET TERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
CGE) CGED)
(Note (i)) (Note (ii))
R-2-N\&
MA—Az4ek Balance at 1 April 2018 65,327 61,572 161,625 288,524
FR2EN LR Total comprehensive income
for the year - - 7,935 7,935
RE (M&E12) Dividends (note 12) - - (11,517) (11,517)
R-B—-NF
ZR=t-BZ&R Balance at 31 March 2019 65,327 61,572 158,043 284,942
FRAREMXBE Total comprehensive expense
for the year = = (4,815) (4,815)
R-Z-%f
=R=t+—Bz#&& Balance at 31 March 2020 65,327 61,572 153,228 280,127

() RERSHEQAFE  ROBERITDIKT
KRB ZRR  HERERESIKRE BB
B ARAANDEENIREPRAEEAEE
BBBPEEZER o RADREIN A LT
BRAFNKRS 275 XEHDIK

(i) EHBHEERER

—EE_F—A-tA

BENZEBEAMBBEZHBARERZ
EHEEFEEADAGLERREZEH
TROZHEZEZRE  BHEHZARER

R EREE e

Moiselle International Holdings Limited % i B9 B 4 1 & [ 4 w]

Notes:

(i)

(if)

In accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account is distributable to
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The
share premium may also be distributed in the form of fully
paid bonus shares.

The contributed surplus represents the difference between the
then combined net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired
over the nominal value of the shares of the Company issued
in exchange thereof pursuant to a group reorganisation which
became effective on 25 January 2002. The application of
contributed surplus is the same as the share premium.
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bl
Address

i

Bl

REBE145

B

it~ DS &

Shop D on G/F

Bo Ming Court

14 Tin Hau Temple Road
North Point

Hong Kong

&8

A
fEERRAI3959%
FEREE—H
10485-755 &

Workshop Nos. 5-7, 10th Floor

Kodak House II

39 Healthy Street East
North Point

Hong Kong

&8

BHBF

HEgEE7%

BEHH

26125847

Part of 26th Floor

Hing Wai Centre

No. 7 Tin Wan Praya Road
Aberdeen

Hong Kong

R (S SETES

Properties held for Investment

RERE

Existing use

Shop

Warehouse

)
£l

Warehouse
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B8

Lease term

EHAE

Short lease

REE

Long lease

hHEE

Medium-term lease
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Properties held for Investment
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bl
Address

BB

N

RAE

BEINET81-875%

SERIEAE

8#BAKBE

Factory Units A & B on 8th Floor,
Island Industrial Building,
Nos. 81-87 Tung Chau Street
Tai Kok Tsui

Kowloon

Hong Kong

R ELRY

EHE

= IR R AR

SR ES

4144102 %

Unit 4102 on 41st Floor,
Excellence Times Plaza
Yitian Road and Fuhua Road
Futian District

Shenzhen, the PRC

FEIRIMAZEAFIXE
REEREF1.6BE3E3CR3IDE
Units 3C and 3D on 3rd Floor,
Tianfa Building, F1.6

Tian’an Chegongmiao
Industrial Zone,

Shenzhen, the PRC

FERYITAREAFIEBARELE

H2.8BE5#E5A5 » 5A6 » 5A7R5A8F » 6126A5 »

6A7R6ASELLR 7#7A9 ~ 7A10 ~ 7A11 »
7A12 ~ 7A13R7AT4E

Flats 5A5, 5A6, 5A7 and 5A8 on 5th Floor,
Flats 6A5, 6A6, 6A7 and 6A8 on 6th Floor
and Flats 7A9, 7A10, 7A11, 7A12, 7A13 and
7A14 on 7th Floor, Jiutai Apartment H2.8,
Tian’an Chegongmiao

Industrial Zone,

Shenzhen, the PRC
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6A6 »

RERAR

Existing use

Al

Warehouse

=
B
vt

Office

=
£
it

Office

BE

Quarter

A

Lease term

A

Medium-term lease

AR

Medium-term lease

RHIRE

Medium-term lease

A

Medium-term lease
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Group Financial Summary

The following is a summary of the published results and assets

FERFENREBUREEREBZHE - and liabilities of the group for each of the five years ended 31
March 2020.
E RESULTS
BE=-A=t—-HLEE
Year ended 31 March
—B-%2F “E-NF ZE-N\F Bt ZE-RF
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
TR FET FTET TExT TET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
W g Revenue 191,604 251,021 290,576 280,397 327,996
ReEBE Loss from operations (119,134) (44,905) (21,622) (55,135) (62,308)
R & AN Finance costs (4,824) (510) (189) (185) (158)
PEAGEEE AR 2 %4 Share of results of an associate - - . . (419)
EEEE AR 2% Share of results of a joint venture - 131 577 (2,632) (4,087)
HEKB AT 2WE Gain on disposal of a subsidiary = 356 = = =
T REEYIRK  Netvaluation (losses) gains on
RENEZHE land and buildings and
(BB hamFEE investment properties (25,425) 27,790 27,594 10,052 15,558
BR®iAT (B518) %K (Loss) profit before taxation (149,383) (17,138) 6,360 (47,900) (51,414)
8% Income tax 2,917 (2,703) (5,099) (4,578) (5,101)
FR(ER)EF (Loss) profit for the year (146,466) (19,841) 1,261 (52,478) (56,515)
THIA LR : Attributable to:
AARERRR Equity shareholders of
the company (146,694) (19,717) 2,007 (52,000) (56,515)
IR E R Non-controlling interests 228 (124) (746) (478) -
FR(ER) =T (Loss) profit for the year (146,466) (19,841) 1,261 (52,478) (56,515)
BR (BE) 2F (Loss) earnings per share
H Basic HK$(0.51)8 T HK$(0.07)8 7 HK$0.01B 7T HK$(0.18)B T HK$(0.20)% 7T
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Group Financial Summary
EERERE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
R=B=+-8
At 31 March
“E-RF “E-NF ZE-N\F ZB-tF ZEBE-KF
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
TET TET THET TER FTER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
W% MEKRME  Property, plant and equipment
URBRENS and investment properties 631,325 685,169 645,818 554,472 536,790
HinEE Other assets 48,517 27,775 13,565 21,397 23,446
ELERBHEE Deferred tax assets 566 600 3,437 3,831 6,187
78 (EE) EEFE Net current (liabilities) assets (24,850) 75,509 103,524 104,742 165,768
EEAERRBEAMR Total assets less current
liabilities 655,558 789,053 766,344 684,442 732,191
FRBRE Non-current liabilities (125,020)  (102,850)  (94,254) (77,947) (73,403)
530,538 686,203 672,090 606,495 658,788
B A Share capital 2,880 2,880 2,880 2,880 2,880
R Reserves 528,178 684,071 669,834 603,493 655,908
AATERZRRIEN Total equity attributable
BRREER to equity shareholder of
the company 531,058 686,951 672,714 606,373 658,788
FERES Non-controlling interests (520) (748) (624) 122 _
BRREEDR TOTAL EQUITY 530,538 686,203 672,090 606,495 658,788
Moiselle International Holdings Limited % i B9 B 4 1 & [ 4 w] Annual Report 2020 4 £ 4 #
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